Greater Cleveland 1240 West 6th Street
Regional Transit Authority ° Cleveland, Ohio 44113-1302
Phone: 216-566-5100

riderta.com

MEETING NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the following meeting of the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority will take place on Tuesday, September 20, 2022 in the
Board Room of the Authority, 1240 West Sixth Street, Cleveland, OH 44113 for consideration of
the listed items and such other items that may properly come before the Board and be acted
upon. This meeting will be live streamed on RTA's Board Page www.RideRTA.com/board via
the meeting date for staff and members of the public. Members of the public may attend in
person.

Based on Centers for Disease Control (“CDC”") guidance to avoid crowded places where you
cannot stay 6 feet away from others and Ohio Department of Public Health advice regarding
congregating and social distancing, as well as RTA’s interest in protecting community and
employee health and safety, RTA Board Room and Meeting Room 1 capacity is limited to thirty-
six (36) people to allow for social distancing. To accommodate members of the public, RTA will
limit the number of staff permitted in the Board Room. All persons entering RTA’s Main Office
Building (“MOB”) at 1240 West 6" Street are required to maintain a distance of six feet or more
from other individuals who are not members of their family or household.

As a result of a federal court order on April 18, 2022, the CDC's January 29, 2021 order
requiring masks on public transportation conveyances and at transportation hubs is no longer in
effect. The CDC continues to recommend that people wear masks in indoor public
transportation settings at this time. As a result, GCRTA recommends, but will not require, that
members of the public wear a mask/face covering.

The meeting package will be posted on RTA’s website at (www.riderta.com/board), on RTA’s
Facebook page, and RTA’s Twitter page.

9:00 A.M. Board of Trustees — agenda attached.

4%
India L. Birdsong Terry /?/
General Manager, Chief Executive Officer

ILB:tab
Attachment



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

AGENDA

RTA Board of Trustees Meeting
Tuesday, September 20, 2022

2:00 a.m.
Call to order
Roll Call
Certification regarding notice of maating
Approval of minutes:

a. August 16, 2022 Special Board Meeting
b, August 23, 2022 Board Meeting

Public comments (2 minutes) on agenda items:
a. In parson
b. Phone: 440-276-4600
¢. Web form (comments will be forwarded to Board and staff)

Board Governance Committes report

Operational Planning & infrastructure Committee report
«  Chair: Ms. Lauren R. Welch

Organizational, Services & Performance Monitoring Committee report
+  Chair. Mayor Anthony D. Biasiotta

Audit, Safety Compliance and Real Estate Committee report
¢  Chair; Mayor Paul A. Koomar

External and Stakeholder Relations and Advocacy Committee repmrt
¢+  Chair: Mr. Terence P. Joyce :

Community Advisory Committee (CAC)
« Board Liaison: TED

Ad Hoc Committee reports:
s  Ad Hoc Paratransit Committee - President Charles P. Lucas, Chair
«  Ad Hoc Technology Committee — Ms. Luz Paliot, Chair

introduction of new employees, announcement of promotions and Board service
pins

Introduction of resolutions:



RTA Board of Trustees
September 20, 2022

Page 2

. 2022-84 — Authorizing Contract No. 2022-017 with B&C Transit, Inc. to

provide a Consolidated Train Dispatch System replacement in an amount
not to exceed $4,000,000.00 (RTA Development Fund, Engineering &
Project Development Department budget)

. 2022-85 — Authorizing Contract No. 2022-080 with the Great Lakes

Construction Co. for Project 272 — Waterfront Line Bridge Rehabilitation,
as specified and as reguired, in an amount not to exceed $8,481,900.00
{(RTA Development Fund, Engineering & Project Development
Depariment budget)

. 2022-86 — Authorizing Contract No, 2022-081 with Rait Development

Group, LLC for the furnishing of remanufactured switch machines, as
specified and as required, for a period of three years in an amount not to
exceed $155,700.00 (RTA Development Fund, Power and Way
Department budget)

. 2022-87 — Authorizing Contract No. 2022-087 with Perk Company, Inc.

for Project 19.41 — GCRTA pavement repairs, as specified and as
reguired, in an amount not to exceed $645,000.00 (RTA Development
Fund, Engineering & Froject Development Department budget)

. 2022-88 — Authorizing Contract No, 2022-089 with Northeast Battery &

Alternator, LLC for the furnishing of bus batteries, as specified and as
required, for a period of two years in an amount not to exceed
$144,117.50 (General Fund, Fleet Management Department budget)

. 2022-89 - Authorizing Contract No. 2022-103 with Western Reserve

Coach Sales, Inc. for the purchase of up to 20 Western Reserve Diamond
paratransit coaches, as specified, for a total contract amount not to
aexceed $2 454 880,00 (RTA Development Fund, Fleet Management
Department budget)

. 2022-90 ~ Autharizing the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer to

enter into an intergovernmental agreement with the Cleveland
Metropalitan School District for student fares for the 2022-2023 school
year and ratifying the issuance of passes and tickets for the first day(s) of
school

. 2022-91 - Authorizing a Memorandum of Understanding with the City of

East Cleveland for bus pad rehabilitation along Euclid Avenue

2022-32 - Ameanding Section 642.09 Relocation Assistance of the
Codified Rules and Regulations of the Greater Cleveland Regional
Transit Authority and Section 300.05 Relocation Assistance of the
Personnel Policies



RTA Board of Trustees
September 20, 2022

Page 3

15.

16.
17.
18.
19.

20,

21,

22.

J. 2022-93 - Removing Sections 628.05 Housing Allowance, 642.05
Employment at Will, 642.06 Employee Selection, 642.07 Employment of
Relatives and 642.08 Employment Eligibility Verification, from the
Codified Rules and Regulations of the Greater Cleveland Regional
Transit Authority as duplicates of the Personngl Policies

Secretary-Treasurer's Report:

a. General Fund Revenue ~ status as of August 31, 2022 versus 2021
actuals

b. General Fund Revenue - status as of August 31, 2022 versus the 2022
budget

¢. Sales & Use Tax Receipts Report budgeted during 2022, actual receipts

through September 2022

Inventary of Treasury investments as of August 31, 2022

e Debt Service Schedule and Status of Bond Retirement Fund (cash basis)
as of August 31, 2022

f. Summary of Investment Performance, Year to Date through August 31,
2022

g. Report on Investment Earnings (cash basis) as of August, 2022

h. Composition of Investment Portfolio as of August 31, 2022

i.  Banking and Financial Relationships as of August 31, 2022

o

General Manager's Report
President's Report

Old Business

New Business

Public comments (2 minutes):
a. In person
b, Phone: 440-276-4600
c. Web form (comments will be forwarded to Board and staff)

The next regular Board meeting is scheduled for Tuesday, October 25, 2022 in

the Board Room of the Authority, Root-McBride Building, 1240 West Sixth Street,
Cleveland, Ohio 44113. This meeting will be live-streamed on RTA's Board page
(www. RideRTA, com/beard) by clicking the meeting date. The public is welcome
to attend in person.

Adjournment



Minutes

Special RTA Board Meeting
9:01 a.m., Tuesday, August 16, 2022

Board Members: Lucas (Chair), Moss, (Vice Chair), Biasioita, Koomar, McCall, Weiss
Not present: Joyce, Pellot, Welch

Staff: Birdsong, Bowles, Burney, Caver, Crawshaw, Dangelo, Fields, Fleig, Garlock, Garofol,
Gautam, Ghanem, Miller, Mothes, O'Donnell, Rusnov, Schipper, Scott, Sutula, Togher, Zimmerman

Public: Gibbons, Loh

The meeting was called to order at 9:01 a.m. There were six (6) board members prasent.

The Secretary advised that notice of this meeting have been posted more than twenty-four hours in
advance of the meeting, that the usual notification has been given the news media and other
interested persons, and that all requirernents of the Ohio Revised Code and Rules and Bylaws of this
Board regarding notice of meeting have been complied with.

Public Comment — agenda item only

There were no comments.

Resolution

A. 2022-71 - Authorizing the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority to enter into
non-binding Letters of Intent for the purchase of property suitable for the Rail
Faciiities Maintenance group, the adoption of which was moved by Ms. McCall,
seconded by Mayor Koomar and approved by unanimous vote.

Ms. Birdsong advised the Board that Legal, Engineering, Operations and Procurement put the
dacument together. This is to move forward with non-binding letters of intent for this purchase and
others that may come before the body for training and rail maintenance facilities.

Ms. McCall asked if this resolution is open ended to other properties, Ms. Burney said this resolution
is for this particular project. There is authority in this resolution to add other properties for this project.
If staff needs to come back regarding policies and procedures for real estate, they will do that
separately. Ms. McCall suggested staff come back to the Board with something that gives the
authority to enter into LOI agreements with the concurrence of the Board. She thanked the staff for
the quick turnaround. Ms. Moss asked if this covers the purchase of the property. Ms. Birdsong said
this covers the negotiations, The final sale will come back to the Board through a resolution.

The meeting was adjourned at 9.09 am.

Praesident

Attest:

Secretary-Treasurer



Minutes
RTA Board of Trustees Meeting
10:04 a.m. August 23, 2022
Board Members: Lucas (Chair), Moss (Vice Chair), Biasiotta, Joyce, McCall, Pellot, Weiss, Welch
Not present: Koomar

Staff. Birdsong, Burney, Caver, Dangelo, Darwin, Fesler, Fields, Fieig, Freilich, Garofoli, Gautam,
{Diana), Hudson, Jones, (Deirdre} Jones, Lincoln, Miller, Mothes, Schipper, Walker-Minor, Woodford

Public: Bingaman, Booker, Colling, Gibbons, Loh, McDonnell, O'Reilly, Wilson

The meeting was called to order at 10:04 a.m. There were eight (8) board members present,

It was advised that notice of this meeting have bean posted more than twenty-four hours in advance
of the meeting, that the usual notification has been given the news media and other interested

persons, and that all requirements of the Ohio Revised Code and Rules and Bylaws of this Board
regarding notice of meeting have been complied with.

Minutes

President L ucas stated that the minutes from the July 26, 2022, Board Meeting had been previously
distributed and reviewed, and asked whether there were any additions and/or corrections, There
were no corrections. The minutes were approved.

Public Comments — Agenda ltems

1. Larry Rodriguez - He likes the cleaniiness on the vehicles. Provide A Ride vehicles are not
clean. RTA should take more control over the paratransit contractors, More schedulers and
dispatchers are neaded.

2. Airric Stewart - He questioned the random sampling done by TransPro in the previous
commitlee meeting. Use numbers instead of percentages. Don't disregard the small number
of complaints from the survey.

3. Piuria Gardner - She called to follow-up on her civil right complaint. Staff will follow up.

4, Chris Slocking -~ (submitted by webform) - Please replace broken next connect screens at bus
stops and stations with new displays with accurate real-time information and current service
alerts, Wirter will be coming soon. | am not going to take off my gloves to check my phone
when the bus is late. Just provide the info at the bus stop so everyone can see it. Also, just
today | saw a rider run across the street from Tower City across to the HealthLine and nearly
got hit by a car. It would be great to display the real-time information for the HealthLine large
enough so people across the street can see it. Many people run to get that bus though it idles
there for a few minutes, Riders never know if it will wait or if it's about to leave. We already
face long commutes, missed connections and service cuts. Please just post this information
large and high so riders stop running into traffic,

5. Chrstopher Jacobs - (submitted by webform) - On the subject of rail car replacement, |
encourage RTA to move toward a standardized rail fleet that can operate on both the Red Line




RTA Board of Trustees
August 23, 2022
Page 2 0of 6

and the Blue and Green lines. This may require an investment in standardizing stations, but
that is a worthwhile investment to simplify maintenance, including spare parts inventory, and to
provide the ability to use trains on any line. | also encourage RTA to buy railcars that are
substantially the same as railcars in use by other transit systems in the US, thereby reducing
the upfront purchase expense and ensuring future availability of parts for maintenance,

Has RTA investigated what steps would be necessary to modify stations such that a more
standard light rail vehicle could be used at all stations? If RTA did not receive multiple viable
proposals in response to the last RFP, then RTA should revisit the idea of purchasing
standard vehicles rather than continue the current system with two different and custom-

ordered rail cars.

Committee Reports

There wera no committee reports.

Community Advisory Committee (CAC)

There were no reports from the CAC.

Ad Hoc Commitice Reports

The Ad Hoc Tech Committee meets August 24, 2022 at 5 p.m. Trustee Lauren Welch was appointed
to assist with the Civilian Review Board.

Introduction of New Emplovees/Promaotions

New Hires:

# % & & & ® # & 2 = 92 =5

Matthew Watts — Operator

Tasha Raum - Operator

Brittany Williams — Crisis Intervention Speacialist
Lucy Hammond — Operator

Alton Kerley — Janitor

Xenia Baeder — Crisis Intervention Specialist
DaVeone Young - Operator

Datonzo Carey — Laborer

Tory Blevins — Transit Ambassador

Janice Brooks — Transit Ambassador

Ebony Allen — Transit Ambassador

Terence Jackson — Transit Ambassador
Kimberley King ~ Transit Ambassadar

Fromotions:

Janet E. Burney — Deputy General Manager — Legal Affairs Division

Introduction of Resolutions:

A 2022-72 — Authorizing Contract No. 2022-039A with Community Insurance Company
DBA Anthem Blue Cross and Blue Shield to provide medical and prescription drug
benefits for a period of one yvear with three, one-year options in amounts estimated at
$31,830,000.00 and $4,640,000.00 respectively, for a total contract amount estimated
at $36,570,000.00 for the first year (General Fund, various department budgets), the



RTA Board of Trustees
August 23, 2022

Fage 3of 6

adoption of which was moved by Ms. Moss, seconded by Ms. McCall and approved by
unanimous vote.

2022-73 - Authorizing Contract No. 2022-0398 with National Vision Administrators,
LLC to provide vision benefits for a period of one year with three, one-year options in
an amount estimated at $112,728.00 for the first year (General Fund, various
department budgets), the adoption of which was moved by Mayor Weiss, seconded by
Ms. McCall and approved by unanimous vote.

2022-74 — Authorizing Contract No. 2022-039C with Delta Dental Plan of Ohio, Inc. to
provide dental benefits for a period of one year with three, one-year options in an
amount estimated at $1,100,000.00 for the first year (General Fund, various
department budgets), the adoption of which was moved by Mayor Weiss, seconded by
Mayor Biasiolta and approved by unanimous vote.

2022-75 — Authorizing Contract No. 2022-039D with Metropolitan Life Insurance
Company to provide life insurance and flexible spending account benefits for a period
of one year with three, one-year options in an amount estimated at $380,000.00 and
$20,000.00 respectively for a total contract amount estimated at $400,000.00 for the
first year (General Fund, various department budgets), the adoption of which was
moved by Mr. Joyce, seconded by Mayor Weiss and approved by unanirmous vote.

2022-76 - Authorizing Contract No. 2022-044 with Aon Risk Services Northeast, Inc. to
provide property and crime insurance broker services in an amount not to exceed
$243,000.00 for the base three years, and in amounts not to exceed $85,050.00 and
$89,300.00 for each optlion year, respectively, for a total contract amount not to exceed
$417,350.00 for the five-year period (General Fund, Risk Management Department
budget), the adoption of which was moved by Mayor Weiss, seconded by Ms. Moss.
Ms. McCall abstained. There were seven (7) ayes and one abstention, It passes.

2022-77 — Authorizing Contract No. 2022-045 with Applications Software Technology,
LLC to provide Oracle laaS services for a total contract amount not to exceed
$2,007,862.00 (RTA Development Fund, Innovation & Technology Department
budget), the adoption of which was moved by Mayor Biasiotta, seconded by Ms. Pellot
and approved by unanimous vote,

2022-78 - Authorizing Contract No. 2022-49 with Construction Support Solutions,
L.L.C. for project 19.46 - On-Call Schadule and Cost Control - 2022 in an amount not
to exceed $200,000.00 for a pericd of twenty-four (24) months (RTA Capital and/or
RTA Development Fund, Engineering & Project Development Department budgat), the
adoption of which was moved by Ms, McCall, seconded by Ms. Pellot and approved by
unanimous vote.

2022-79 — Authorizing Contract No. 2022-078 with Oracle America, Inc. to provide
Oracle Infrastructure as a Service (laa3) Subscription Services, in an amount not to
exceed $173,934.00 (General Fund, {innovation & Technology Department budget), the
adoption of which was moved by Mayor Biasiotta, seconded by Ms. Moss and
approved by unanimous vote.

2022-80 - Authorizing the purchase of casualty insurance from various insurance
underwriters through US! Insurance Services National, Inc. and Price Faorbes &
Partners Limited, or their successors, for a period of 12 months, in a total amount not



RTA Board of Trustees
August 23, 2022
Page 4 of 6

to exceed $2,044,610.00 (Insurance and General Funds, Risk Management
Department budget), the adoption of which was moved Mayor Weiss, seconded by
Mr. Joyce, Ms. McCall abstained. There were seven (7) ayes and one abstention. It
Passes.

J. 2022-81 — Authorizing the donation of transit coach numbers 1803 and 1806 {o the
Cuyahoga Community Caollege District's Transportation Innovation Center, the
adoptton of which was moved by Mayar Weiss, seconded by Ms. Pellot and approved
by unanimous vote,

Alicia Booker, VP of Manufacturing and Technology Center and lan Wilson, Director of
Transportation Center from Tri-C were in attendance, The vehicles will be used for
their bus operator training program. They thanked RTA for the vehicles.

K. 2022-82 — Enacting Section 222.05 of the Codified Rules and Regulations of the
Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority to create an independent Civilian
Oversight Committes for review of public complaints against Transit Police Department
employees, the adoption of which was moved by Ms, Pellot, seconded by Ms. McCall
and approved by unanimous vote.

Mayor Weiss thanked the staff for taking feedback from the Board on this program.

L. 2022-83 — Amending the appropriations for the current expenses and other
expenditures for the Greater Claveland Regional Transit Authority, as adopted in
Resolutiort No. 2021-112 and amended in Resolution No. 2022-068, to increase the
number of positions for members of the Civilian Qversight Committee, the adoption of
which was moved by Mayor Weiss, seconded by Ms. Welch and approved by
unanimous voie,

Secretary-Treasurer's Report

Rajan Gautam, Deputy General Manager of Finance and Secretary-Treasurer gave the presentation.
The U.S. unemployment rate dropped from 3.6% in June to 3.5%. Ohio unemployment rate is 3.9%.
Cuyahoga County unemployment rate is 5.5%. The height of the labor force was February 2020,
After the pandemic we're back to pre-COVID unemployment rates. For June the MSA was
unchanged for most of the metropolitan areas except for Toledo. Cleveland was 5.5%. Cincinnati
was 3.3%. Columbus was 3.2%. Dayton was 3.7%. Toledo moved down from 4% to 3.8%

July ridership was 15.8% above July 2021, YTD ridership is 18.8% above 2021 levels. Compared to
2021, ridership increased on most modes. Paratransit up 20%. Bus up 18.6%. Heavy Rail up
12.9%. Healthline up 12.5%. July fare revenue was $2.2 million which is 25.4% higher than July
2021 and 21.2% higher than budget. YTD revenue is $22.7% higher than the same period in 2021,
Sales tax represents the largest unrestricted source of revenue for operations. August 2022 sales tax
compared to August 2021 was up 2.4%. Fifteen of the 23 categories that make up the sales tax base
was positive in June. For the first time, motor vehicles and watercraft showed a downward trend in
June which was 20.5% lower. Online salas remain strong at 37.2%. Regular and statewide sales are
9.4% higher.

General Manager/CEQ Report

Indiz L. Birdsong, General Manager, CEQ gave the report. RTA received a $8 million OTP2 grant for
rail car replacement and $3.5 million UTP grant for the Bus tmprovement Program. The GCRTA



RTA Board of Trustees
August 23, 2022
Page Hof6

mentoring program, Positive Impact Program held recognition ceremonies at the bus districts. RTA
participated in the 52™ Annual Puerto Rican Parade on August 7. RTA is working with Graffiti HeArt
and board member Luz Pellot on an art project with French artist Blek Le Rat. He donated the
artwork which was placed on the Cuyahoga River Viaduct Bridge. RTA participated in the Touch A

Truck event held on Public Square August 14,

The Rail District held a Rail Rodeo August 13. The rodeo is a skills competition among rail operators,
Power & Way and Rail Equipment employees. Ms. Birdsong put in a request to APTA about hosting
the Rail Conference in 2027 or 2028 when the Authority's new rail fleet is running. We are scheduled
to host in 2024, RTA paricipated in the Corporate Challenge sports competition this summer. RTA
placed 1% in skeeball and 2" in tug a war, Chief Jones was honored for her work in the LGBTQ+
cormmunity at the Human Rights Campaign Annual Dinner held August 20.

Board members Ms. McCall and Ms. Pellot attended the APTA Transit Board Members Seminar held
in Salt Lake City, UT, July 30 - August 2, Ms. McCall served on a panel about the CEO search
process and CEO performance evaluation. Mr. Fields served on a panel discussion on addressing
workforce shortages. Ms. McCall added that this seminar is excellent to see what other transit
agencies are doing and to share RTA practices. APTA requested the CEQ become more active,

RTA employees participated in the Lean Six Sigma Boot Camp program at Tri-C Corporate College.
Employees received Green Belt and Black Belt certifications. The EZ fare launch was June 12, Staff
is working through the next steps for the program. Ms. Moss mentioned that people are having
problems using the app as they exit the train stations. Ms. Birdsong said that staff will investigate this.
Transit Ambassadors may also be able to assist customers.

Frasident's Report

- The Board of Trustees presented a gift to Sheryl King Benford, former General Counsel and Deptty
General Manager of Legal Affairs. Ms. Benford expressed her appreciation and pleasure serving the
Authority. She will stay on as an advisor for the Authority until later this year.

Public Comments

1. Loh — RTA needs to measure training. She has assisted customers in using the Transit App.
Some ticket purchases are showing up in the old app. Veteran operators are more helpful
than the new ones. Some operators dock the HealthLine vehicles too far away from the curb,

2. Airric Stewart — He restated his suggestions mentioned during public comments at past
meetings for the 15A bus route. He proposes the bus should run every 15 minutes and will
connect people to hospitals, schools, and retail jobs at Pinecrest and Harvard Shopping Plaza.

3, Sherita Montgomery ~ She suggested we use a more user-friendly virtual platform where
participants can add the meetings to their calendar and participate virtually. She asked if the
UTP grant money will be used for electric buses. She asked if the Board could increase the

public comments time.

4. Brian Schriver ~ (submitted by web form) Rail car replacement - | believe that RTA would
benefit from moving to a standard rail car fleet. My impression is that previous RFPs have
required the rail car provider to heavily customize vehicles in order to adapt to the current
physical requirements of stations. Is this accurate? Has RTA investigated what steps would be
necessary to modify stations such that a more standard light rail vehicle could be used at all
stations? Buying standard light rail vehicles would make it much easier for RTA to maintain the
fleet and would give more flexibility in supporting the rail system into the future. It wouid



RTA Board of Trustees
August 23, 2022
Page 6 of 6

minimize the risks associated with being "locked in" to one vendor that had created a
customized vehicle that could only serve GCRTA. | believe that previous consultants have
overestimated the effort required to make these station modifications and | respectfully request
that RTA revisit this alternative. Final question - has RTA received viable proposals from more
than one rail car supplier in response to the RFP earlier this year?

5. Daniel Rossi ~ (submitted by web form) - Station upgrade/maintenance - | believe the GCRTA
would benefit from a potential project to make the rail stations a more welcoming environment
by neutralizing the odors that exist at the stations. Far too many times | have stepped foot into
an RTA rail station and be welcomed of the smell of urine/body odor as | make my way to the
piatform. s there any measures being taken to address this issue.

Expansion - Has there been any studies conducted in recent years to show
demand/expansion for passenger rail in the surrounding communities of the existing rail line. |
believe there is an untapped market in Lakewood, Rocky River, and Bay Village/Westlake for
passenger rail along the Norfolk and Southern freight line. As someone who has visited friends
and loved ones that live near that ling, the line goes fairly unused and if an agreement was
reached between the RTA and Norfolk Southern for passenger rail, | believe it would create a
new revenue stream for RTA, and provide residents of the communities mentioned above
opportunities to travel the west side of cuyahoga county more efficiently with less carbon

impact.

Upcoming Meetings

The next regular Board meeting is scheduled for Tuesday, September 20, 2022, in the Board Room
of the Authority, Root-McBride Building, 1240 West Sixth Street, Cleveland, Ohio 44 113. This meeting
will be live streamed on RTA's Board page (www.RideRTA.com/hoard) by selecting the meeting date.
The public is welcome to attend in person.

The meeting was adjourned at 11:08 a.m.

President

Attest:

Secretary-Treasurer



Form 100- Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
326 STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS
01-12-22
TITLE/DESCRIPTION: Resolution No.:
CONTRACT: CONSOLIDATED TRAIN DISPATCH SYSTEM 2022-84
September 15, 2022
VENDOR: B&C TRANSIT, INC. Initiator:

Engineering & Project
Devalopment

AMOUNT: NTE $4,000,000.00 Department

ACTION REQUEST;
H Approval [ Review/Comment U Information Only £ Other

1.0  PURPOSE/SCQOPE: This action will allow the Authority to enter into a contract for the
replacemeant of its Consolidated Train Dispatch System (“CTDS").

2.0  DESCRIPTION/AJUSTIFICATION: The Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority (GCRTA)
owns and operates a CTD3. The system monitors and controls train movements via system-
inttiated controls relayed to field devices, Data is processed and displayed on workstations
tocated in the Integrated Control Center (ICC). In addition, the CTDS is a missian critical
system that provides schaduling and repording functions, The existing systemn is approximately
twanty-five (25) years old and the software is no longer supported. The current system also
relies on older technology, such as modems, channel banks and anliquated servers which
have reached end-of-life.

3.0 PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: The Request for Proposals ("RFP") was posted
on the procurement website and advertised in the local newspapers, Notifications of
the solicitation were sent to five (5) potential proposers. Four (4) interested parties
downloaded the solicitation and three (3) responded on May 5, 2022, After evaluation
by a panel of Authority employees in accordance with established Procurement
Department policies and procedures, the proposal of B&C Transit, In¢., as negotiated,
to provide CTDS replacement, was determined to be the most advantageous to the
Authority, price and all other factors considered. A cost analysis has been performed
and the Procurement Depariment has determined the negotiated not to exceed
amount of $4,000,000.00 to be fair and reasonable to the Authority. This negotiated
amount is approximately 10% above the Engineer's Estimate.

4.0  AFFIRMATIVE ACTION/DBE BACKGROUND: All Affirmative Action requirements have been
met. A 2% DBE goal was established for this procurement. B&C Transit, inc. has commitied to
achieving the DBE participation geal through the utilization of US Communication & Electric,
inc. (Caucasian Female-owned) in the amount of $113,925.00 or 2%.

50 POLICY IMPACT: Does not apply.

6.0 ECONOMIC IMPACT: This procurement will be funded through the RTA Development Fund,
Engineering & Project Development Department budget, including but not limited to 100% local
funds, in an amount not to exceed $4,000,000.00.

7.0  ALTERNATIVES: Reject this offer. Rejection of this offer would delay the replacement of the
Authority's existing CTDS, requiring the Authority to continue maintaining an aging and
antiguated system, leading to potential service interruptions.



Staff Summary & Comments
CTDS Replacement 2022-84
Page 2

8.0 RECOMMENDATION: This procurement was discussed by the Board of Trustees at the
September 13, 2022 Organizational, Services and Performance Monitoring Committee
meeting. It is recommended that the offer from B&C Transit, Inc. be accepted and the
resolution passed authorizing the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer to enter info a

contract.

9.0 ATTACHMENTS: None,

Recommended and certified as appropriate to the
avaitability of funds, legal form and conformance with
the Procurement requirements.

""?” General Managar Gﬁ‘r‘é’ Execufwa"ﬂffmar



RESOLUTION NO. 2022-84

AUTHORIZING CONTRACT NOQ. 2022-017 WITH B&C TRANSIT, INC. TO
PROVIDE A CONSOLIDATED TRAIN DISPATCH SYSTEM REPLACEMENT IN
AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $4,000,000.00 (RTA DEVELOPMENT FUND,
ENGINEERING & PROJECT DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT BUDGET)

WHEREAS, the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority requires a gualified firm to
provide a consolidated train dispatch system (“CTDS") replacement for its existing system; and

WHEREAS, the Authority requires a CTDS to monitor and control train movements via
system-initiated controls relayed to field devices: and

WHEREAS, the Authority's existing CTDS is approximately twenty-five (25) years old
and the software is no longer supported; and

WHEREAS, the proposal of B&C Transit, Inc., located at 1924 Franklin Street, Suite
200, Oakland, California 24612, to provide a CTDS replacemeant for a total contract amount not
to exceed $4,000,000.00, was received on May &, 2022; and

WHEREAS, the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer deems the offer of B&C
Transit, inc., as negotiated, to provide a CTDS replacement, to be in the best interest of the
Authority and recommends acceptance thereof by the Board of Trustees.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio;

Section 1. That the offer of B&C Transit, Inc. to provide a Consolidated Train Dispatch
System ("CTDS") replacement, as modified by negotiations, is hereby accepted.

Section 2. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer of the Authority be and
she is hereby authorized to enter into a contract with B&C Transit, Inc. for the performance of
said services,

Sectlion 3. That said contract shalt be payable out of the RTA Development Fund,
Engineering & Project Development Departrent budget, including but not limited to 100% local
funds, in an amount not to exceed 34,000,000.00.

Section 4. That said contract shall be hinding upon and an obligation of the Authority,
contingent upon compliance by the contractor with the Specifications and Addenda thereto, if
any, the Affirmative Action Plan adopted by the Board of Trustees; bonding and insurance
requirements and all applicable laws relating to contractual obligations of the Authority.

Section 5. That the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority's Board of Trustees
expects that B&C Transit, Inc. will attermpt to exceed the 2% minimum DBE goal assigned to
this procurement.

Section 8. That this resclution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: September 20, 2022

Fresident

Aftest:

Secretary-Treasurer



Form 100- Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
328 STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS

WOVZ22 | M e,

TITLE/DESCRIPTION: Resolution No.:
2022-85

CONTRACT: PROJECT 27Z - WATERFRONT LINE BRIDGE Date:

REHABILITATION Saptember 15, 2022

VENDOR; THE GREAT LAKES CONSTRUCTION CO. Initiator:

AMOUNT: $8,481,900.00 Engineering & Project
Development

ACTION REQUEST:

M Approval [ Review/Comment 11 Information Only (1 Other

1.0 PURPOSE/SCOPE: This action will altow the Authority to enter into a contract to provide
construction services for Project 27Z — Waterfront Line Bridge Rehabilitation.

2.0  DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION: The work to be performed under this contract includes,
strengthening, repairing, and painting portions of the Post Tensioned Segmental Concrete
Bridge, rail replacements on the bridge and approaches, and repair to the Mechanically
Stabilized Earth (MSE) walls supporting the approaches crossing over Front Ave, NS Railroad
in the east bank of the flats and through the Port of Cleveland. This will allow the Waterfront
Line Bridge to return to service.

3.0 PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: The Invitation for Bids ("IFB") was posted on the GCRTA
Pracurement website and advertised in the local newspapers. Sixty-seven (67) interested
parties, including potential subcontractors, downloaded the solicitation package. Two (2)
responsive bids were received and openad on August 25, 2022, as follows:

| Company Name Total Base Bid |
The Great Lakes Construction Co. $8,481,900.00
The Ruhiin Company $9,642,020.00
The Basis of Award is the lowest responsive bid from a responsible bidder for the Total Base
Bid price, The Great L.akes Construction Co. was determined to be a responsible bidder. The
Total Base Bid price of $8,481,900.00 from The Great Lakes Construction Co. is 21.19% less
than the Engineer's Estimate of $10,762,219.00.

4.0 AFFIRMATIVE ACTION/DBE BACKGROUND: All Affirmative Action requirements have been
met. A 12% DBE goal was established for this procurement. The Great Lakes Construction
Co. has committed to achieving the DBE participation goal thraugh the utilization of Flatrock
Bridge Group (Caucasian Female-owned) in the amount of $135,000.00, Intelligent Polymer
Solution LLC (Caucasian Female- owned) in the amount of $983,618.00 x 60% equals
$596,170.00, JPCO (African American Male-owned) in the amount of $185,627.00, and
Rockport Ready Mix (Caucasian Female-owned) in the amount of $103,000.00, for a total of
$1,019,797.00 or 12%.

5.0 POLICY IMPACT: Does not apply.

6.0 ECONOMIC IMPACT: This procurement shall be payable through the RTA

Development Fund, Engineering & Project Development Department budget, including
but not limited to, Capital Grant OM-2021-050-307 5307, 100% locat funds and pending
FTA Grant revision OH-2021-050-337, for a total contract amount not to exceed
$8,481,900.00 ($6,785,520.00 in federal funds which represents 80% of total cost).




Staff Summary & Comments
Waterfront Line Bridge Rehabilitation 2022-85
Page 2

7.0 ALTERNATIVES: Reject this offer, Rejection of this offer will prevent the Waterfront Line
Bridge from returning to service.

80 RECOMMENDATION: This procurement was discussed by the Board of Trustees at the
September 13, 2022 Operational Planning & Infrastructure Committee meeting. it is
recommended that the bid of The Great Lakes Construction Co. be accepted and the
resotution passed autherizing the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer to enter into a

confract,
8.0 ATTACHMENTS: None.
Recommended and certified as appropriate to the

availability of funds, legal form and conformance with
the Procurement requirements.

%mf

/ General Manager, Gibf Execiitive Officer




RESOLUTION NO. 2022-85

AUTHORIZING CONTRACT NO. 2022-080 WITH THE GREAT LAKES
CONSTRUCTION CO. FOR PRQJECT 27Z - WATERFRONT LINE BRIDGE
REHABILITATION, AS SPECIFIED AND AS REQUIRED, IN AN AMOUNT NOT
TO EXCEED $8,481,900.00 (RTA DEVELOPMENT FUND, ENGINEERING &
PROJECT DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT BUDGET)

WHEREAS, the Authority deems it necessary to acquire construction services, as
required, under Project 27Z — Waterfront Line Bridge Rehabilitation; and

WHEREAS, the bid of The Great Lakes Construction Co., located at 2608 Great Lakes
Way, Hinckley, Ohio 44233, was received on August 25, 2022, in an amount not to exceed
$8,481,900.00; and

WHEREAS, the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer deems the bid of The Great
Lakes Construction Co. to be the lowest responsive bid from a responsiblie bidder and
recommends acceptance thereof by the Board of Trustees.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That the bid of The Great Lakes Construction Co. for Project 27Z — Waterfront
Line Bridge Rehabkilitation, be and the same is hereby accepted.

Section 2. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer of the Authority be and
she is hereby authorized to enter into a contract with The Great Lakes Construction Co. for
Project 27Z — Waterfront Line Bridge Rehabilitation.

Section 3. That this procurement shall be payable through the RTA Davelopment Fund,
Engineering & Project Development Department budget, including but not fimited to, Capital
Grant OH-2021-050-307 5307, 100% local funds and pending FTA Grants and pending FTA
Grant revision OH-2021-050-337, for a total contract amount not to exceed $8,481,900.00
($6,785,520.00 in federal funds which represents 80% of total cost).

Section 4. That said contract shall be binding upon and an obligation of the Authority
contingent upon compliance by the contractor to the Specifications and Addenda, thereto, if any;
the Affirmative Action Plan adopted by the Board of Trustees; bonding and insurance
requirements; and all applicable {aws relating to the contractuat obligations of the Authority.

Section 5. That the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority's Board of Trustees
expects that The Great Lakes Construction Co. will attempt to exceed the 12% minimum DBE
goal assigned to this procurement,

Section 6. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: September 20, 2022

President

Attest:

Secretary-Treasurer



Form Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
100-326 STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS
01 _12“22 LU W A T
TITLE/DESCRIFTION: Resolution No.:
2022-886
CONTRACT; FURNISHING OF REMANUFACTURED SWITCH Date:
MACHINES, AS SPECIFIED & AS REQUIRED, FOR A September 15, 2022
PERIOD OF THREE YEARS - :
Initiator;
VENDOR: RAIL DEVELOPMENT GROLIF, | I.C FPower and Way
Department
AMOUNT: NOT TO EXCEED $155,700.00
ACTION REQUEST:
H Approval {1 Review/Comment U Information Only 1 Other
1.0  PURPOSE/SCOPE: This resolution will aliow the Authority to enter into a contract for the

2.0

3.0

4.0

50

6.0

furnishing of remanufacturad switch machines, as specified and as required, for a period of
three years.

DESCRIPTION/AJUSTIFICATION: The Authority has a need to replace the obsolete rail yard
Speed Frater switch machines due to lack of spare part availability. These switch machines
move the track and allow trains to cross from one track to another and are necessary for the
efficient operation of the Authority's rail system.

PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: The Invitation for Bids (*IFB") was posted on the GCRTA
Procurement web site and advertised in the |local newspapers. Nineteen interested parties
downloaded the solicitation. Two responsive bids were received on August 17, 2022,

The Basis of Award is the lowest responsive bid from a responsible bidder for the Total Base
Bid price, Rail Development Group, LLL.C was determined to be a responsible bidder,

Rail Development Group, LLC Patco Industries, tnc.
Estimated Estimated
Three Year Extended Three Year Extended
Unit Cost Quantity Cost Unit Cast Quantity Cost
55,190.00 30 $155,700.00 $8,995.00 30 $269,850.00

A price analysis has been performed and the Procurement Department has determined the
price to be fair and reasonable to the Authority. The bid price iz approximately 35% below the
budget estimate.

AFFIRMATIVE ACTION/DBE BACKGROUNLD: All Affirmative Action requirements have been
met. A 0% DBE goal was established for this procurement due to the lack of cerdified DBE
firms.

POLICY IMPACT: Does not apply.

ECONOMIC IMPACT: This procurement will be funded through the RTA Development Fund,
Power and Way Department budget, including but not limited to, Capital Grants OM-2018-001,
0OH-2018-024, OH-2019-037, and OH-2021-050, in an amount not to exceed $155,700.00
($124,560.00 in federal funds which represents 80% of the total cost) for a period of three
years.




Staff Summary & Comments 2022-86
Remanufactured Switch Machines 0
Page 2

7.0 ALTERNATIVES: Reiject this offer. Rejection of this offer would impact the Authority's ability to
efficiently operate the rait system.

8.0 RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the bid of Rail Development Group, LLC. be
accepted and the resolution passed authorizing the General Manager, Chief Executive
Officer to enter into a contract.

9.0 ATTACHMENTS: None

Recommended and certified as appropriate to the
availability of funds, legal form and conformance with
the Procurement requirements.

RS S

i S

7 General Manager<Chief ExXgcitive Officer




RESOLUTION NO. 2022-86

AUTHORIZING CONTRACT NO. 2022-081 WITH RAIL DEVELOPMENT GROUP,
LLC FOR THE FURNISHING OF REMANUFACTURED SWITCH MACHINES, AS
SPECIFIED AND AS REQUIRED, FOR A PERIOD OF THREE YEARS IN AN
AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $155,700.00 (RTA DEVELOPMENT FUND, POWER
AND WAY DEPARTMENT BUDGET)

WHEREAS, the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority requires the furnishing of
remanufactured switch machines to replace the obsolete speed fraters to efficiently operate the
Authority's rail system; and

WHEREAS, the bid of Rail Development Group, LLC, located at 600 Mite Crossing Blvd,
Rochester, New York 14624, for the furnishing of remanufactured switch machines, as specified
and as required, for a period of three years, was received on August 17, 2022, at unit prices
resulting in a total contract amount not to exceed $155,700.00; and

WHEREAS, the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer deems the bid of Rail
Development Group, LLC to be the lowest responsive bid from a responsible bidder and
recommends acceptance thereof by the Board of Trustees.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That the bid of Rail Development Group, LLC for the furnishing of
remanufactured switch machines, as specified and as required, for a period of three years be
and the same is hereby accepted.

Section 2. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer be and she is hereby
authorized to enter into a contract with Rail Development Group, LLC for the furnishing of
remanufactured switch machines, as specified and as required, for a period of three years,

Section 3. That said contract shall be funded through the RTA Development Fund,
Power and Way Depariment budget, including but not limited to, Capital Grants OH-2018-001,
OH-2018-024, OH-2018-037, and OH-2021-050, in an amount not to exceead $155,700.00
($124,560.00 in federal funds which represents 80% of the total cost) for a period of three years.

Sectlion 4. That said contract shall be binding upen and an obligation of the Authority
contingent upon future funding, comphlance by the contractor to the Specifications and
Addenda, if any; the Affirmative Action Plan adopted by the Board of Trustees; bonding and
insurance requiremeants and all applicable laws relating to contractual obligations of the
Authority.

Section 5. That the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority's Board of Trustees
expects that Rail Development Group, LLC will attempt to exceed the 0% minimum DBE goal

assignhed to this procurement,

Section 8. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: September 20, 2022

Fresident

Attest:

Secretary-Treasurer



Form 100- Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
326 STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS
01-12-22
TITLE/DESCRIPTION; Resolution No.:
CONTRACT. PROJECT 19.41 — GCRTA PAVEMENT REPAIRS 2022-87
Date:
VENDOR: PERK COMPANY, INC. September 15, 2022
tnittator:
AMOUNT: $645,000.00 Engineering & Project
Development
Department
ACTION REQUEST:
X Approval [J Review/Comment 0 Information Only 0 Other

1.0  PURPQSE/SCOPE: This action will allow the Authority to enter into a contract to provide
construction services for Project 19.41- GCRTA Pavement Repairs.

2.0  DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION: The work to be performed under this contract includes
pavement repairs at the Windermere Rapid Transit Station, W. 117" Street Rapid Transit
Station, and various bus pads adjacent to shelters along Euclid Avenue.

3.0 PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: The invitation for Bids ("IFB") was postad on the GCRTA
Procurement website and advertised in the local newspaper. Nine (9) interested parties,
including potential subcontractors, downloaded the solicitation package. Two (2) bids were
received and opened on August 24, 2022,

Company Name Total Base Bid
Perk Company, Inc ) $645,000.00
Cook Paving & Canstruction, Inc. $697,928.00

The Basis of Award is the lowest responsive bid from a responsible bidder for the Total Base
Bid price. Perk Company, Inc. was determined to be a responsible bidder, The total Base Bid
price of $645,000.00 from Perk Company, Inc. is approximately 7.5% less than the Engineer's
Estimate of $696,435 67,

4.0 AFFIRMATIVE ACTION/ DBE BACKGROUND: All Affirmative Action requirements have been
met. An 18% DBE goal was established for this procurement. Perk Company, In¢. has
committed to achieving this DBE goal through the utilization of PGT Construction (Caucasian
Female-owned) in the amount of $30,521.00, Cuyahoga Supply Tool (Caucasian Female-
owned) in the amount of $23,500.00 x 60% equaling $14,150.00, and Rockport Ready Mix
(Caucasian Female-owned) in the amount of $71,550.00, for a total of $116,221.00 or 18%.

50  POLICY IMPACT: Does not apply.

6.0 ECONOMIC IMPACT: This procurement shalt be payable through the RTA Development Fund,
Engineering & Project Development Department budget, including but not limited to, Capital
Grant OH-2021-050-307, for a total contract amount not to exceed $645,000.00 ($516,000.00
in federal funds which represents 80% of total cost).

7.0  ALTERNATIVES: Reject this offer. Rejection of this offer will allow for the continued
degradation of the parking surfaces and bus pads atong Euclid Avenue, which are part of this
project.



Staff Summary & Comments u
GCRTA Pavement Repairs 2022-87
Page 2

8.0 RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the bid of Perk Company, Inc. be accepted and
the resolution passed authorizing the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer to enter into a

contract,

9.0 ATTACHMENTS: None.

Recommended and certified as appropriate to the
avalability of funds, legal form and conformance with

the Procurement requirements.

o

ot

a:f‘;,r@aneral Manager, Chief Exscutive Offfcer




RESOLUTION NO. 2022-87

AUTHORIZING CONTRACT NO. 2022-087 WITH PERK COMPANY, INC, FOR
PROJECT 19.41 —~ GCRTA PAVEMENT REPAIRS, AS SPECIFIED AND AS
REQUIRED, IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $645,000.00 (RTA
DEVELOPMENT FUND, ENGINEERING & PRQJECT DEVELOPMENT
DEPARTMENT BUDGET)

WHEREAS, the Authority deems it necessary to acquire construction services, as
required, under Project 19.41 — GCRTA Pavement Repairs, which includes pavement repairs at
the Windermere Rapid Transit Station, W, 117" Street Rapid Transit Station, and various bus
pads adjacent to shelters along Euclid Avenue; and

WHEREAS, the bid of Perk Company, Inc. located at 8100 Grand Ave., Ste #300,
Cleveland, Ohio 44104-3110, was received on August 24, 2022, in an amount not to exceed
$645,000.00; and

WHEREAZS, the General Manager, Chief Exacutive Officer deems the bid of Perk
Company, inc. fo be the lowest responsive bid from a responsible bidder and recommends
acceptance thereof by the Board of Trustees.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That the bid of Perk Company, Inc., for Project 19.41 — GCRTA Pavement
Repairs, be and the same is hereby accepted.

Section 2. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer of the Authority be and
she is hereby authorized to enter into a contract with Perk Company, Inc. for Project — 19.41
GCRTA Pavement Repairs.

Section 3. This procurement shalf be payable through the RTA Development Fund,
Engineering & Project Development Depariment budget, including but not limited to, Capital
Grant OH-2021-050-307, for a total contract amount not to exceed $645 000 ($516,000.00 in
federal funds which represents 80% of total cost),

Section 4. That said contract shall be binding upon an obligation of the Authority
contingent upon compliance by the contractor to the Specifications and Addenda, thereto, if any;
the Affirmative Action Plan adopted by the Board of Trustees: bonding and insurance
reguirements; and all applicable laws relating to the contractual obligations of the Authority.

Section &. That the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority's Board of Trustees
expects that Perk Company, Inc. will attempt to exceed the 18% minimum DBE goal assigned to
the procurement,

Section 6. That this resolution shall become effactive immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted; September 20, 2022

President

Attest:

Secretary-Treasurer



Form Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
100-326 STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS
01-12.22
TITLE/DESCRIPTION: Resolution No.;

CONTRACT: FURNISHING OF BUS BATTERIES, AS SPECIFIED & AS
REQUIRED, FOR A PERIOD OF TWO YEARS

VENDOR: NORTHEAST BATTERY & ALTERNATOR, LLC
AMOUNT: NOT TO EXCEED $144,117.50

2022-88

Date:
September 15, 2022

Initiator;

Fleet Management
Department

ACTION REQUEST:
Approval {1 Review/Comment [ Information Only 10 Other

1.0 PURPOSE/SCOPE: This resolution will allow the Authority to enter into a contract for the
furnishing of bus batteries, as specified and as required, for a period of two years.

2.0  DESCRIPTIONAUSTIFICATION: This contract for bus batteries is necessary to operate the

Authority’s revenue and non-revenue vehicles,

3.0  PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: The Invitation for Bids (IFB) was posted on the GCRTA
Procurement web site and advertised in the local newspapers. Nineteen interested parties
downloaded the solicitation. Two bids were received on August 24, 2022, in which there was

one responsive bid.

The Basis of Award is the lowest responsive bid from a responsible bidder. Northeast Battery &
Alternator, LLC was determined to be a responsible bidder. Their bid is as follows:

Estimated Unit Per Unit Core Estimated
Delivery Period | Baftery Type | Quantity Price Credit Contract Price
Group 31C,
Year One 12 V 850 $98.50 $ 18.00 $ 69,955.00
Group 31C,
Year Two 12V 850 $103.45 $ 18.00 $ 74,162.50

$144,117.50

Core return quantity is computed at 90% of estimated annual purchase quantity, or 765,

The bid requires the successful bidder to dispose of old non-usable battery cores by recycling
them and crediting the Authority for their value. These credits are applied against the invoices
for the new replacement batteries purchased under the terms of the contract,

A price analysis has been performed and the Procurement Department has determined the
price to be fair and reasonable to the Authority. The bid price is approximately 4.2% above the

budget estimate,

4.0 AFFIRMATIVE ACTION/OBE BACKGROUND: All Affirmative Action requirements have been
met. A 0% DBE goal was established for this procurement due to the lack of certified DBE

firms.

50 POLICY IMPACT: Does not apply.




Staff Surnmary & Comments
Bus Batteries 2022-88
Page 2

8.0

7.0

8.0

9.0

ECONOMIC IMPACT; This procurement will be funded through the General Fund, Flest
Management Department budget, in an amount not to exceed $144,117.50, for the two-year
period,

ALTERNATIVES: Reject this offer. Rejection of this offer would impact the Authority's ability to
operate the revenue and non-revenue vehicles.

RECOMMENDATION: Itis recornmended that the bid of Northeast Battery & Alternator, LLC
be accepted and the resolution passed authorizing the General Manager, Chief Executive

Officer to enter into a contract,

ATTACHMENTS: None

Recommended and certified as appropriate to the
availability of funds, legal form and conformance with

the Procurement requirements.




RESQLUTION NO. 2022-88

AUTHORIZING CONTRACT NO. 2022-089 WITH NORTHEAST BATTERY &
ALTERNATOR, LLC FOR THE FURNISHING OF BUS BATTERIES, AS
SPECIFIED AND AS REQUIRED, FOR A PERIOD OF TWO YEARS IN AN
AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $144,117.50 (GENERAL FUND, FLEET
MANAGEMENT DEPARTMENT BUDGET)

WHEREAS, the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority requires the furnishing of
bus batteries to operate the Authority's revenue and non-revenue vehicles: and

WHEREAS, the bid of Northeast Battery & Aiternator, LLC, located at 489 Washington
St, Ste #102, Auburn, Massachusetts 01501, for the furnishing of bus batteries, as specified and
as required, for a period of two years was received on August 24, 2022, at unit prices resulting
in & total contract amount not o exceed $144,117.50; and

WHEREAS, the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer deems the bid of Northeast
Battery & Alternator, LLC to be the lowest responsive bid from a responsible bidder and
recommends acceptance thereof by the Board of Trustees.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohia:

Section 1. That the bid of Northeast Battery & Alternator, LLC for the furnishing of bus
batteries, as specified and as required, for a period of two years, be and the same is hereby

accepted.

Section 2. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer be and she is hereby
authorized to enter into a contract with Northeast Battery & Alternator, LLC for the furnishing of
bus batteries, as specified and as required, for a period of two years.

Section 3. That said contract shall be funded through the General Fund, Fleet
Management Department budget, in an amount not to exceed $144,117.50, for a period of two

years,

Section 4. That said contract shall be binding upon and an obligation of the Authority
contingent upon future funding, compliance by the contractor to the Specifications and
Addenda, If any, the Affirmative Action Plan adopted by the Board of Trustees; bonding and
insurance requirements and all applicable laws relating to contractual obligations of the
Authority,

Section 5. That the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority’s Board of Trustees
expects that Northeast Battery & Alternator, LLC will attempt to exceed the 0% minimum DBE
goal assigned to this procurement.

Section 8. That this resolution shall bacome effactive immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: September 20, 2022

President

Altest:

Secretary-Treasurer



Form 100- Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
326 STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS
01-12-22
TITLE/DESCRIPTION; Resolution No
CONTRACT: AUTHORIZING THE PURCHASE OF UP TO 20 2022-89
WESTERN RESERVE DIAMOND PARATRANSIT Date:
COAGHES September 15, 2022
) Initiator; Flest
VENDOR: WESTERN RESERVE CCQACH SALES, INC. Management
AMOUNT:  NOT TO EXCEED $2 454.880.00 Department
ACTION REQUEST:
Approval [ Review/Comment [ Information Only (1 Other
1.0 PURPOSE/SCOPE: This resolution will authorize the Authority to enter into a contract for the

20

3.0

4.0

5.0

6.0

manufacture and delivery of up to 20, wheelchair equipped, Western Reserve Diamond
Paratransit coaches, through the State of Ohio, Department of Transportation, Cooperative
Purchasing Program (*Cooperative Purchasing Program”).

DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION: These transit vehicles wilt be used by the Authority's
Paratransit District. The Board of Trustees approved Resolution No. 2021-52 with Myers
Equipment Corp. for the purchase of 10 Paratransit coaches under the State of Ohio,
Cooperative Purchasing Program. Due te multiple supply chain and manufacturing issues with
the vehicles, the contract was canceled. The 20 Paratransit coaches purchased under
authority of this Resolution include the 10 that had been canceled. These new vehicles will
replace the GCRTA's 7500 fleet, Paratransit vans, and MV-1 vehicles, The vehicles were
purchased in 2013 and have exceeded their useful life in age and/or mileage in accordance
with the Authorily's vehicle replacement policy and guidelines.

PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: The Board of Trustees has authorized the General
Manager, Chief Executive Officer to utilize the Cooperative Purchasing Program by Resolution
No. 2004-076. This allows the Authority to place orders against State of Ohio, Department of
Transportation contracts. Under Ohio Revised Code Section 306.43(H){(4), competitive
procedures are not required when the purchase of goods or services is made from another
political subdivision, public agency, public transit system, regional fransit authority, the state, or
the federal government, or as a third-party beneficiary under a state or federal procurement
contract, or as a participant in a department of administrative services contract under division
(B} of Section 125.04 of the Revised Code. The Cooperative Purchasing Program includes
contracts for Paratransit coaches, which are a result of competitive solicitations. The Authority
will purchase up to 20 Western Reserve Diamond Paratransit coaches at a unit price of
$122,744.00, for a total price not to exceed $2,454,880.00. A price analysis has been
performed, and the Procurement Department has determined the price submitted by Western
Reserve Coach Sales, Inc. is fair and reasonable to the Authority.

AFFIRMATIVE ACTION/DBE BACKGROUND: The Office of Business Devetopment does not
conduct Affirmative Action reviews or establish goals on procurements included in the State
Cooperative Purchasing Program,

RPOLICY IMPACT: Does not apply.

ECONOMIC IMPACT: This contract shall be payable from the RTA Development Fund, Fleet
Management Department budget, including but not limited to FTA Capital Grant OH-2021-009
in an amount of $2,077,077.50, FTA Capital Grant OH-2017-029 in an amount of $14 867 36,
and 100% local funds in the amount of $362 935,14 for 20 Paratransit coaches, at a unit price
of $122,744.00, resulting in a total contract amount not to exceed $2 454, 880.00
($1,673,555.88 in federal funds which represents 68% of the total cost).



Staff Summary & Comments
Paratransit Coaches 2022-89
Page 2

7.0 ALTERNATIVES: Reject this offer. Rejection of this contract would impact the Authority's ability
to provide reliable and timely service.

8.0 RECOMMENDATION: This procurement was discussed by the Board of Trustees at the
September 13, 2022 Organizational Planning & Infrastructure Committee meeting. It is
recommended that the bid of Western Reserve Coach Sales, Inc., be accepted and the
resolution passed authorizing the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer to enter into a
contract.

9.0 ATTACHMENT: None

Recommended and certified as appropriate to the
availability of funds, tegal form and conformance with
the Procurement requirerments,

//7
e ey
JMM'&;{ P /‘“‘:{m.\ e

WGeneral Manager, Chigf Etecutive Qffker




RESOLUTION NO. 2022-89

AUTHORIZING CONTRACT NO. 2022-103 WITH WESTERN RESERVE
COACH SALES, INC. FOR THE PURCHASE OF UP TO 20 WESTERN
RESERVE DIAMOND PARATRANSIT COACHES, AS SPECIFIED, FOR A
TOTAL CONTRACT AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $2,454 880.00 (RTA
DEVELOPMENT FUND, FLEET MANAGEMENT DEPARTMENT BUDGET)

WHEREAS, the Authority has identified the need to purchase Paratransit vehicles to
replace those that have reached or exceeded their useful life; and

WHEREAS, such vehicles are available through the State of Ohio, Department of
Transportation Cooperative Purchasing Program (“Cooperative Purchasing Program”); and

WHEREAS, Section 5513.01(B) of the Chio Revised Code provides political
subdivisions within the State of Ohio the opportunity to participate in contracts executed by the
State of Ohio, Department of Transportation; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees of the Authority authorized the utilization of the
Cooperative Purchasing Program in Resolution No, 2004-076; and

WHEREAS, Section 306.43(H)(4) of the Ohio Revised Code states that competitive
procedures are not required when the purchase is made from another political subdivision,
public agency, public transit system, regional transit authority, the state, or the federal
government, or as a third party beneficiary under a state or federal procurement contract, or as
a participate in a department of administrative services contract under division {B) of Section
125.04 of the Revised Code; and

WHEREAS, Western Reserve Coach Sales, Inc., located at 12347 Marlboro Avenue,
Alliance, OH 44601, has offered to manufacture and deliver up to 20 Diamond Paratransit
coaches, as specified, at a unit price of $122,744.00, for a total amount not to exceed
$2,454,880.00; and

WHEREAS, the General Manager, Chief Executive has deemed it in the best interest of
the Authority to procure the required vehicles utilizing the Cooperative Purchasing Program from
Western Reserve Coach Sales, inc. and recommends acceptance thereof by the Board of
Trustees,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio;

section 1. That the bid of Western Reserve Coach Sales, Inc., for the manufacture and
delivery of up to 20 Diamond Paratransit coaches, as specified, be and the same is hereby
accepted.

Section 2. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer of the Authority be and
she is hereby authorized to enter into a contract with Western Reserve Coach Sales, Inc. for the
manufacture and delivery of up to 20 Paratransit coaches, as specified.

Section 3. This contract shall be payable from the RTA Development Fund, Fleet
Management Deparment budget, including but not limited to FTA Capital Grant OH-2021-008 in
an amaunt of $2,077,077.50, FTA Capital Grant OH-2017-029 in an amount of $14,867.36, and
100% local funds in the amount of $362 935,14 for 20 Paratransit coaches, at a unit price of
$122,744.00, resulting in a total contract amount not to exceed $2,454,880.00 ($1,673,555.88 in
federal funds which represents 68% of the total cost).



Resolution No. 2022-88
Page 2

Section 4. That said contract shall be binding upon and an obligation of the Authority
contingent upon compliance by the contractor to the Specifications and Addenda, if any; the
Affirmative Action Plan adopted by the Board of Trustees; bonding and insurance requirements
and all applicable laws relating to contractual obligations of the Authority.

Section 5. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption,

Adapted: September 20, 2022

President

Aftest:

Secretary- Treasurer



gi’ffl"; 32%0'326 Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS
TITLE/DESCRIPTION: Resolution No.:
2022-90
AUTHORIZING THE GENERAL MANAGER, CHIEF EXECUTIVE Date:

OFFICER TO ENTER INTO AN INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT September 15, 2022

WITH THE CLEVELAND METROPQLITAN SCHOOL DISTRICT FOR

STUDENT FARES FOR THE 2022-2023 SCHOOL YEAR AND Initiator:
RATIFYING THE ISSUANCE OF PASSES AND TICKETS FOR THE Finance

FIRST DAY(S) OF SCHOOL

ACTION REQUEST:

K Approval [ Review/Comment {1 information Only i1 Other

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

50

6.0

7.0

PURPOSE/SCOPE: This Intergovernmental Agreement will allow a volume discount to
the Cleveland Metropolitan School District (*CMSD"), the Authority's largest volume
buyer of student fare cards and tickets, for the purchase and payment of magnetic stripe
farebox compatible picture card 1D passes and student tickets for the 2022-2023 school
year. The purchase and payment will relieve some of the budgetary impact on the
schools, as well as improve cash flow and accounts receivable activity for the GCRTA,
This action includes ratification of the issuance of thirteen thousand (13,000} passes and
one hundred thousand (100,000) 2-trip tickets to CMSD for use by students on August 1,
2022,

The CMSD school board approved this agreement at its August 23, 2022 board meeting.

DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION: The proposed Intergovernmental Agreement with
CMSD will allow for discounted rates, provided the school district meets certain criteria.
This proposal is a result of discussions with CMSD, generating over $3.8 million in
annual revenue for the GCRTA.

PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: Does not apply.
DBRE/AFFIRMATIVE ACTION BACKGROUND: Does not apply.

POLICY IMPACT: This action is consistent with the Board's policy to authorize the
Authority to enter into intergovernmental agreements with school districts for student
fares. Authorization of this Intergovernmental Agreement will allow GCRTA to continue
to provide economical public transportation to students as well as promote ridership of
public transportation.

ECONOMIC IMPACT: (Revenue Generating) Entering into this agreement should result
in $3,818,000 for the Authority, and will provide advance payment and improved cash
flow, as well as encourage volume purchases.

ALTERNATIVES: Rejection of this action would result in hardship for the schoot district
and could lead to CMSD's possible discontinuation of purchasing GCRTA's fare madia
for student transportation.




Staff Summary and Comments 2022-90

Intergovernmental Student Transportation Agreement
Page 2

8.0 RECOMMENDATION: This resolution was discussed at the September 13, 2022,
Operational Planning & Infrastructure Committee and recommended for consideration by
the full Board of Trustees. It is recommended that this resolution be adopted.

9.0  ATTACHMENT: Draft Intergovernmental Student Transportation Agreement.
Recommended and certified as appropriate to the availability of

funds, legal form and conformance with the Procurement
requirements.

7
St ey

General Manager, Ghief Exective Officer




DRAFT FOR REVIEW

INTERGOVERNMENTAL STUDENT TRANSPORTATION AGREEMENT
BETWEEN THE
GREATER CLEVELAND REGIONAL TRANSIT AUTHORITY
AND THE
CLEVELAND METROPOLITAN SCHOOL DISTRICT
FOR THE 2022-2023 SCHOOL YEAR

THIS AGREEMENT, by and between the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit
Authority (hereinafter referred to as "GCRTA"), 1240 West 6 Street, Cleveland, Ohio
44113-1331, acting pursuant to Resolution No. , adopted by its Board of Trustees
on . and the Cleveland Metropolitan School District (hereinafter
referred to as the "District"), whose principal offices are located at 1111 Superior Ave E,
Suite 1800, Cleveland, OH 44114, acting pursuant to Resolution No. , adopted by
the Board of Education of the D|$tr|ct on

WITNESSETH: That

WHEREAS, the District is certified by the Ohio Department of Education to
provide education services; and

WHEREAS, the District wishes to make transportation available to its enrolled
students and to students on whose behalf it is obligated to provide transportation service;
and

WHEREAS, the GCRTA is amenable to providing said service to the District's
students; and

WHEREAS, the District and GCRTA wish to provide transportation in a
controlled, efficient and cost-effective manner; and

WHEREAS, due to the COVID-18 pandemic, the District moved to remote
learning in March 2020 and its students did not use GCRTA's transportation services from
that date through the June 18, 2020 conclusion of the term of the Intergovernmental
Student Transportation Agreement between the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit
Authority and the Cleveland Metropolitan School district for Academic Year 2019 (2019
Agreement”), and

WHEREAS, the District and GCRTA negotiated a refund for a portion of the
amount paid under the 2019 Agreement to reflect the time period during which it did not
take advantage of GCRTA's transportation services in the form of a credit applied over
the course of the 2020-2021 and 2021-2022 school years; and

WHEREAS, due to uncertainty created by the COVID-19 pandemic regarding
whether the District's students would attend school in person or virtually during the 2020-
2021 and 2021-2022 school years, the District determined that tickets would best address



DRAFT FOR REVIEW

its need for transportation and discontinued the use of magnetic stripe farebox compatible
picture card 1D passes during those school years; and

WHEREAS, GCRTA and the District entered into short-term agreements in
2020 and 2021 to address the District's reduced need for transportation during the
COVID-19 pandemic without setting a precedent for future agreements; and

WHEREAS, GCRTA and the District have decided to return to issuing
magnetic stripe farebox compatible picture card ID passes to District students for the
2022-2023 school year. ’

NOW, THEREFORE, GCRTA and the District, for good and valuable consideration
including the mutual promises contained below, agree as follows:

1. TERM OF AGREEMENT

This Agreement shall commence on August 1, 2022, and shall continue through
June 23, 2023 .

2. PRICE AND TERMS OF SALE

a) Passes,

To improve controls and ensure valid use and costs, GCRTA and the District
agree to issue magnetic stripe farebox compatible picture card ID passes
(‘Passes”) to 13,000 District students for daily use on GCRTA vehicles as proof
of payment, for a total cost of $3,658,000. The District agrees to obtain
GCRTA's approval of any changes to the layout or format of the Passes. These
Passes shall be valid for fares from 5:30 AM to 8:30 PM Monday through Friday
from August 1, 2022 through June 23, 2023. Passes will be used by students
during school days which may be different from school to school. Black out
time will be Thanksgiving and, Winter break (as outlined on Exhibit A).

GCRTA will supply the Passes by August 1, 2022, Students will receive a free
ride to school on GCRTA vehicies their first day of school.

b) The cost of any student tickets that the District needs to purchase during the
term of this agreement will be $1.75 per ride. (These tickets will be referred to
herein as “Tickets.”) On July 25, 2022, the District ordered and was provided
100,000 student tickets at the price of $1.60 per 2-trip student ticket. CMSD
shall remit payment for these tickets within 30 days of the date of the invoice.

¢) Tickets must be ordered on a separate written purchase order. The District shall
not assess a charge in excess of this price for each Ticket, GCRTA shall deliver
the number of Tickets specified in each order to the District's Transportation



d)

DRAFT FOR REVIEW

Department. The risk of loss for said Tickets shall pass to the District
immediately upon delivery of the Tickets to the District. The District shall sign
the accompanying invoice and immediately return the signed invoice to
GCRTA's Accounts Receivable Department.

Passes and Tickets may be used by District students in Grades 7 through 12,
residing within the borders of Cuyahoga County and attending private or public
schools certified by Ohio Department of Education. Passes may be used
through the expiration date of the Passes stated in Section 2a above. Tickets
may be used until the expiration date of the Tickets. Passes and Tickets may
be used on regular routes operated by the GCRTA for the purpose of
transporiing fare paying passengers. Passes and Tickets are non-transferable.
Non-students using Passes or Tickets will either be denied service or required
to pay the full fare.

Payment

The District shalt pay Three Million Six Hundred Fifty-Eight Thousand Dollars
($3,658,000) for the Passes.

GCRTA shall invoice the District for the purchase of $3,658,000 by September
1, 2022 and the District shall pay it by October 1, 2022,

GCRTA shall invoice the District for each order of Tickets and the District shall
remit payment within 30 days of the date of the invoice.

Failure to make timely payment may lead to the termination of this agreement.
ihvoices

Invoices will be directed to the District's Office of Accounting, Attention: Michael
Bowen, Director of Accounting.

L.ost or Voided Passes

Reports of any Passes that were cancelled shall be reported to GCRTA on a
weekly basis. GCRTA will assess a fee of $10.00 for each lost or stolen Pass
in excess of 1,950 (15% of the total number of Passes).

RIGHT TO TERMINATE AGREEMENT

if either Party becomes insolvent or fails to perform any undertaking essential to
the purpose of this Agreement, or fails to conduct its business {o the satisfaction
of the other Party, then the other Party may cancel and terminate this Agreement
by thirty (30) days' notice in writing to the defaulting Party, provided, however, that



DRAFT FOR REVIEW

the defaulting Party may cure any failure of performance within thirty days of
receipt of nhotice.

The expiration or termination, for any reason, of this Agreement shall be without
prejudice to the rights of either Party.

STUDENT CONDUCT

a) In accordance with its representations in 2015, the District removed the
following language from the 2016-2017 Student Code of Conduct and
maintains its deletion from the 2022-2023 Student Code of Conduct:

A student suspended from the bus will be given two RTA tickets at
the time of suspension. Additional RTA tickets will be provided, as
needed, each day the student appears in school during the term of
the bus suspension.

b) The Board of Education of the District has adopted and maintains the policy
outlined in Exhibit B hereto.

FORCE MAJEURE

If because of Force Majeure, either Party shall be unable {o carry out any of its
obligations under this Agreement, then those obligations shall be suspended to the
extent made necessary by Force Majeure. The Party affected by Force Majeure
shall give notice to the other Party as promptly as practical of the nature and
probable duration of such Force Majeure. “Force Majeure” shall mean acts of God,
tiots, strikes, tabor disputes, labor or material shortages, fires, explosions, floods,
breakdowns of or damage to plants, equipment or faciliies, or other causes of
stmilar nature which are beyond the reasonable control of the Party and which
wholly or partially prevent the timely performance of the Party's obligations under
this Agreement, provided that the effect of such Force Majeure shall be eliminated
insofar as possible with all reasonable dispatch; provided further, that performance
of service obligations by the Party shall be excused only to the extent made
necessary by the Force Majeure condition; provided further, that neither Party shall
be required to settle a labor dispute on terms unacceptable to the Party affected;
and provided further, that neither Party shall be required to rebuild alt or a major
portion of its facilities which are destroyed or substantially impaired by a Force
Majeure condition. The Pariies agree that, during the duration of the Force
Majeure condition, neither will seek to deciare the other in default for failure to
timely perform itz obligations under this Agreement.

RECORDS AND AUDITS

The District shall maintain books, records, documents, and other evidence directly
pertinent to the performance of the Work under this Agreement in accordance with

4



DRAFT FOR REVIEW

generally accepted accounting principles and practices consistently applied and
Federal Acquisition Regulations, Parts 30 and 31, as applicable. GCRTA and its
authorized representatives shall have the right to audit, to examine and to make
copies of or extracts from all financial and related records (in whatever form they
may be kept, whether written, electronic, or other) relating to or pertaining to this
Agreement kept by or under the control of the District, including, but not limited to
those kept by the District, its employees, agents, assigns, successors and
suibcontractors. Such records shall include, but not be limited to, accounting
records, written policies and procedures; subcontract files; all paid vouchers
including those for out-of-pocket expenses; other reimbursement supported by
invoices, ledgers; cancelled checks; deposit slips; bank statements; journals;
original estimates; estimating work sheets; contract amendments and change
order fites; back charge logs and supporting documentation; insurance decuments;
payroll documents; timesheets, memoranda; and correspondence. The District
shall, at all times during the term of this Agreement and for a period of three years
after the completion of this Agreement, maintain such records, together with such
supporting or underlying documents and materials. The District shall at any time
requested by GCRTA, whether during or after completion of this Agreement, and
at the District's own expense make such records available for inspection and audit
(including copies and extracts of records as required) by GCRTA. Such records
shall be made available to GCRTA during normal business hours at the District's
office or place of business. In the event that no such location is available, then the
financial records, together with the supporting or underlying documents and
records, shall be made available for audit at a time and location that is convenient
for GCRTA. The District shall ensure GCRTA has these rights with the District's
employees, agents, assigns, successors, and subcontractors, and the obligations
of these rights shall be explicitly included in any subcontracts or agreements
formed between the District and any subcontractors to the extent that those
subcontracts or agreements relate to fulfilment of the District's obligations to
GCRTA. If the audit discovers substantive findings refated to fraud,
misrepresentation, or non-performance, GCRTA may recoup the costs of the audit
work from the District. Any adjustments and/or payments that must be made as a
resuft of any such audit or inspection of the District’s invoices and/or records shall
be made within a reasonable amount of time (not to exceed 90 days) from
presentation of GCRTA's findings to the District.

ASSIGNMENT

Neither Party shall assign any of its rights or obligations under this Agreement
without the prior written consent of the other Party.

CHANGES; ALTERATIONS

No change, alteration, modification, or addition to this Agreement shall be effective
unless in writing and properly executed by both Parties.



DRAFT FOR REVIEW

9. APPLICABLE LAW: SEVERABILITY

This Agreement and any disputes relating to it shall be construed under the jaws
of the State of Ohio. If any provisions of this Agreement are determined to be
invalid or unenforceable, such invalidity or unenforceability shall not affect any of
the Agreement’s remaining provisions.

10.  ENTIRE AGREEMENT

This instrument constitutes the enfire Agreement of the Parties with respect to its
subject matter, superseding all prior understandings, agreements, or
communications (whether oral or written), and shall be binding upon and inure to
the benefit of the Parties, their successors, and permitted assigns.

11.  NOTICES

All notices to be given pursuant to this Agreement shall be sufficient if given in
writing, delivered in person or by registered or certified mail, postage prepaid,
and, in either case addressed to the respective party at its postal address or at
such other address or addresses each may hereafter designate in writing.
Notices by mail shall be deemed effective and complete at the time of posting
and mailing in accordance herewith.

Notice shall be delivered or mailed to the parties at the addresses shown below:

if to the District tf to GCRTA

Cleveland Metropalitan School Greater Cleveland Regional Transit
District Authority

Attn: Eric Taylor Atin: John J. Togher

Executive Director, Transportation

3832 Ridge Road Director of Accounting

Cleveland, OH 44144 1240 West 6% Street

Cleveland, OH 44113-1331

12. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The Parties acknowledge and agree that the District is a governmental entity and
due to statutory provisions cannot commit to the payment of funds beyond its fiscal
year (July 1 through June 30). By signing this Agreement, the District represents
that it has appropriated the funds necessary to fulfill its obligations under this
agreement for the 2022-2023 school year.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreerment at Cleveland, Ohio,
as of the last date set forth below.



DRAFT FOR REVIEW

GREATER CLEVELAND CLEVELAND METROPOLITAN
REGIONAL TRANSIT AUTHORITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
By: _ By: .
India L. Birdsong Terry Eric S. Gordon
General Manager, CEQ Chief Executive Officer
Date: Date;

The legal form and correctness of the within
Instrument is hereby approved.

Janet E. Burney, General Counsel
Deputy General Manager-Legal Affairs

CERTIFICATE OF FUNDS
(Section 5705.41, O.R.C.)

In the matter of; Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority

IT 1S HEREBY CERTIFIED that moneys required to meet the obligations of the
Board of Education of the Cleveland Metropolitan School District under the above
referenced Agreement have been lawfully appropriated for such purposes and are in the
treasury of the School District or are in the process of collection to an appropriate fund,
free from any previous encumbrance.

CLEVELAND METROPOLITAN SCHOOL DISTRICT

By.

Dated:




202222023 $chool Year

Thanksaiving Break
Wednesday, 11/23/22
Thursday, 11/24/22
Friday, 11/25/22

Winter Break
Monday, 12/26/22
Tuesday, 12/27/22
Wednesday, 12/28/22
Thursday, 12/29/22
Friday, 12/30/22
Monday, 1/2/2023

DRAFT FOR REVIEW

Exhibit A
Black Out Dates




DRAFT FOR REVIEW

Exhibit B
Repeat Viclent Offender Exclusion Policy

Any high school student found by any judicial system to have committed two or more
nonviolent crimes (including, but not limited to, theft, criminal damaging, disorderly
conduct, or menacing) related to conduct occurring on an RTA vehicle or at an RTA facility
or stop may, at the discretion of the CEQ or his/her designee, forfeit their privilege to
receive RTA transportation or payment for a period of up to one year.

Any high school student found by a judicial system to have committed any violent crime
(including, but not timited to, assault, robbery, any sex crime, arson, possession of a
dangerous ordinance, or possession of any weapon prohibited by Cleveland Codified
Ordinance Section 627.11) related to conduct occurring on an RTA vehicle or at an RTA
facility or stop will forfeit their privilege to receive RTA transportation or payment for a
period of one year.

Any high school student found by a judicial system to have committed any violent or
nonviolent crime related to conduct occurring on an RTA vehicle or at an RTA facility or
stop after a one year forfeiture and reinstatement of RTA transportation privileges will
permanently forfeit his or her privilege to receive RTA transportation or payment.

Students who forfeit their RTA transportation privilege pursuant to this policy wilt not be
provided any other means of transportation by the District, except that students who
require transportation services pursuant to an individualized education program or 504
plan will be provided alternative transportation services by the District.



RESOLUTION NO. 2022-90

AUTHORIZING THE GENERAL MANAGER, CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER TO
ENTER INTO AN INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT WITH THE
CLEVELAND METROPOLITAN SCHOOL DISTRICT FOR STUDENT FARES
FOR THE 2022-2023 SCHOOL YEAR AND RATIFYING THE ISSUANCE OF
PASSES AND TICKETS FOR THE FIRST DAY(S) OF SCHOOL

WHEREAS, the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority ("GCRTA" or “the
Authority”) provides public transportation that facilitates trave! by students to and from school;
and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolution No. 2006-131, to aveid an undue hardship on the
school districts and to improve the cash flow for the Authority, the GCRTA established an
alternate fare structure for the 2006-2007 school year through the 2008-2010 school year for
school districts that purchase $1,000,000 or more of student farecards per year; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolution No. 2010-019 the rates of fares to be charged by the
GCRTA were amended: and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolution No. 2010-043, the alternate fare structure
established in Resolution No. 2006-131 was revised for the 2010-2011 school year through the
2012-2013 school year to align with the fares enacted in Resolution 2010-019, and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolution 2012-076, the Board of Trustees approved an
agreement with the Cleveland Metropolitan School District ("CMSD"), the Authority’s largest
volume buyer of student farecards, for the purchase of $2,430,000 in tickets in advance and
instituted the use of farebox-compatible picture identification cards (“Passes”) thus improving
transportation efficiency and control of student passengers; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolution Nos. 2013-109, 2014-061, 2015-075, 2016-068,
2017-061, 2018-073, 2019-101, 2020-099, and 2021-087 the Board of Trustees approved
agreements with CMSD for the purchase of passes and tickets; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolution 2016-036, the rates of fares to be charged by the
GCRTA were amended, including an increase in the price of a student ticket from $1.50 to
$1.75; and

WHEREAS, CMSD has agreed for the 2022-2023 school year to purchase 13,000
magnetic stripe farebox compatible picture card 1D passes for use by students for the first day of
school on August 1, 2002. In addition to the picture card 1D passes, on July 25, 2022, the district
ordered and was provided 100,000 student tickets at a price of $1.60 per 2-rip student tickets.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Saction 1. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer is authorized to enter into
an intergovernmental agreement with the Cleveland Metropolitan School District ("CMSD") for
the 2022-2023 school year.



Resolution No. 2022-80
Page 2

Section 2. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer's actions in tssuing
passes and tickets for the first day of school on August 1, 2022, are hereby ratified.

Section 3. CMSD will purchase 13,000 magnetic stripe farebox compatible picture card
D passes for the total cost of 3,658,000 and 100,000 student tickets at a cost of $160,000.
CMSD may purchase additional tickets at a cost of $1.75 per ride.

Section 4, That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: September 20, 2022
President

Attast:

Secretary-Treasurer



Form 100- Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
326 STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS
V1222 W i,
TITLE/DESCRIPTION: Resolution No.:
2022-91
AUTHORIZING A MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING WITH THE Date:
CITY OF EAST CLEVELAND FOR REHABILITATION OF BUS PADS
ALONG EUGCLID AVENUE September 15, 2022

Initiator: Qperations

ACTION REQUEST:
B Approval [0 Review/Comment [ Information Only 3 Other

1.0

2.0

3.0
4.0
50

6.0
7.0

8.0

9.0

PURPOSE/SCOPE: This action will allow the Authority to enter into a Memorandum of
Understanding ("MOU") with the City of East Cleveland (“E. Clavetand”) to rehabilitate certain
bus pads along Euclid Avenue in E. Cleveland.

DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION: GCRTA currently operates six (6) routes on Euclid Avenue
in E. Cleveland, and its east side district, Windermere, is located on Euclid Avenue in E.
Cleveland. GCRTA has made a significant investment in new buses, particularly the
HealthLine buses, which are required to operate on the curb lane of Euclid Avenue in E.
Cleveland. The GCRTA Qperations and Engineering Divisions have recognized that certain
bus pads adjacent to bus shelters are deteriorating and require rehabilitation in order to
prevent damage to GCRTA's buses. E. Cleveland and GCRTA have agreed to a MOU under
which GCRTA will procure construction services to make concrete repairs at those bus pad
locations,

PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: Does not apply.
DBE/AFFIRMATIVE ACTION BACKGROUND: Does not apply.

POLICY IMPACT: This MOU is consistent with GCRTA's cooperative refationship with E.
Cleveland in furtherance of ensuring that the bus pads are safe for bus traffic.

ECONOMIC IMPACT: Does not apply.

ALTERNATIVES: Reject the MOU, Rejection will likely lead to damaged buses that operate
along Euclid Avenug in E. Cleveland

RECOMMENDATION. [tis recommended that the Board of Trustees adopt the resolution
authorizing the MOU with E. Cleveland for bus pad rehabilitation.

ATTACHMENT: Attachment A — draff Memorandum of Understanding

Recommended and certified as appropriate to the
availahbility of funds, lagal form and conformance with
the Procurement regquirements.

s e

General Manager, Chief Executive Officer




DRAFT

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTYANDING BETWEEN
THE GREATER CLEVELAND REGIONAL TRANSIT AUTHORITY
AND THE CITY OF EAST CEVELAND

This Memorandum of Understanding (‘MOU") is made on , 2022

between the Greater Clevetand Regional Transit Authority ("GCRTA"), a political subdivision of the
State of Ohio, with a business address of 1240 W. 8" St Cleveland, OH 44113, and the City of Fast
Cleveland ("E. Cleveland"), a municipality, with a business address of 41340 Euclid Avenue, Fast
Cleveland, Ohio 44112, collectively “the Parties.”

WHEREAS, the purpose of this MOU is to memorialize an agreement between the Parties
regarding rehabilitation of certain bus pads along Euclid Avenue in E. Cleveland; and

WHEREAS, GCRTA operates 6 bus routes atong Euclid Avenue in E. Cleveland; and

WHEREAS, GCRTA has made a substantial investment in its transit buses, particularly the
HealthLine buses, many of which have been recently replaced with brand new coaches; and

WHEREAS, certain bus pads along Euclid Avenue in E, Cleveland have been deemed unsafe
for operation of buses and must be rehabilitated for the safe operation of GCRTA's buses; and

WHEREAS, in order to protect its significant investment in transit buses that run along Euclid
Avenue in k. Cleveland, GCRTA has agreed to undertake rehabilitation of certain bus pads adjacent
to its bus shalters; and

WHEREAS, k. Cleveland has a substantial interest in the health, safety and weifare of its
residents and visitors.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises, covenants and obligations
contained herein, the Parties agree as follows:

Section 1. E. Cleveland acknowledges that the provision of bus pads and maintenance of bus
pads is the responsibility of E. Cleveland.

Section 2. GCRTA has been in discussions with E£. Cleveland regarding the need for bus pad
rehabilitation for several years, and the Parties previously worked together in April 2022 on temporary

repairs to bus pads along Euclid Avenue in E. Cleveland.



DRAFT

2ection 3. In order to ensure that permanent repairs are made before the temporary repairs
made in Spring 2022 fail, GCRTA will engage a contractor to perform repairs and/or replacement of
certain Euclid Avenue bus pads, as specifically enumerated and described in Attachment A, which is
attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference.

Section 4, That E. Cleveland acknowledges and accepts any and all liability arising from
claims refated to the bus pads and will, furthermore, defend and hold harmless GCRTA against any
such claims, excluding claims alleging negligence in performance of the construction work as such
claims will be borne by the contractor performing the pavement rehabilitation.

Section 5. That the maintenance of all bus pads within its city limits, including those

rehabilitated pursuant to this MOU, will remain the responsibility of E. Cleveland.

iN WITNESS WHEREOQOF, GCRTA and the City of East Cleveland have caused this MOU to

be executed effective on the date written above.

CITY OF EAST CLEVELAND GREATER CLEVELAND REGIONAL
TRANSIT AUTHORITY
Ry: By:
Brandon L. King India L. Birdsong Terry
Mayor CEQ, General Manager
Date; Date.

The legal form and correctness of
the within instrument are hereby
approved.

Janet E. Burney, General Counsel
Deputy General Manager for Legal Affairs



RESCLUTION NO, 2022-91

AUTHORIZING A MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING WITH THE CITY QF
EAST CLEVELAND FOR BUS PAD REHABILITATION ALONG EUCLID

AVENUE

WHEREAS, the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority ("GCRTA") and the City of
East Cleveland (“E. Cleveland") have determined it is in the mutual interest of both parties that
certain bus pads along Euclid Avenue, adjacent to hus shelters, are rehabilitated; and

WHEREAS, GCRTA operates six (8) bus routes along Euclid Avenue in E. Cleveland
and operates its east side station, Windermere, along Euclid Avenue in E. Cleveland; and

WHEREAS, GCRTA has made a significant invastment in its bus fleet, which could be
damaged by joint separation in the concrefe bus pads; and

WHEREAS, GCRTA has identified federal grant funding for paverent repairs which can
be used for a bus pad rehabilitation project.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, QOhio:

Section 1. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer is hereby authorized to
enter in a Memorandum of Understanding with the City of East Cleveland for the purpose of bus
pad rehabilitation along Euclid Avenue.

Section 2. That this resolution shall become effective immaediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: September 20, 2022

President

Altest:

Secretary-Treasurer



Form 100- Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
326 STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS
LO1I222 N e
TITLE/DESCRIPTION: Rasolution No.:
2022-92
AMENDING SECTION 642.09 RELOCATION ASSISTANCE OF THE Date:
CODIFIED RULES AND REGULATIONS OF THE GREATER September 15, 2022
CLEVELAND REGIONAL TRANSIT AUTHORITY AND SECTION 300.05 - :
RELOCATION ASSISTANCE OF THE PERSONNEL POLICIES Initiator:
Human Resources

ACTION REQUEST:
H Approval 1 Review/Comment [} Information Only ] Other

1.0

2.0

3.0
4.0
5.0

6.0

7.0

8.0

2.0

PURPQOSE/SCQPFE: This resolution will amend Seclion 642.09, Relocation Assistance of the
Codified Rules and Regulations ("Code") of the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Autharity
and Section 300.05, Relocation Assistance of the Persannel Policies.

DESCRIPTIONAJUSTIFICATION: The Policies and Procedures of the Board of Trustees were
codified in 1989, pursuant to Resolution 1989-176. The Code Book is now undergeing a
comprehensive review and update so that the Code will conform to the current structure and
operations of the Authority. The proposed amendment will remove details about
reimbursement amounts and IR3 reguiations from the Code Book, while retaining appropriate
details in Personnel Policy 300.05.

PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: Does not apply.
DBE/AFFIRMATIVE ACTION BACKGROUND: Does not apply.

POLICY IMPACT; Adoption of the resolution will remove unnecessary details from the Code
Book and retain appropriate details in the Personnel Policies.

ECONOMIC IMPACT: Does not apply.

ALTERNATIVES: Not adopting this resolution. Not adopting this resolution would result in
identical policies remaining in both the Code Book and the Personnel Policies.

RECOMMENDATION: This resolution was discussed at the Septermnber 13, 2022 Committee
of the Whole meeting and recommended for consideration by the full Board of Trustees, Itis
recommended that this resolution be adopted.

ATTACHMENTS: A, Red-line of proposed amendments to Code Book Section 642.09
B. Red-line of proposed amendments to Personnel Policy Section 300.05

Recommended and cerlified as appropriate to the
availability of funds, legal form and conformance with
thé Procurement requirements.

7

( General Manager, Chief Executive Officer




ATTACHMENT A TO STAFF SUMMARY

642.09 RELOCATION ASSISTANCE.

(a) KisthepelieyoftheThe Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority te-will
provide equitable reimbursement of relocation expenses to newly hired
management and professional employees_(Grade 28 or above) hired from outside
the Greater Cleveland area.

() The CEO/General Manager, Chief Executive Officer may, in special
circumstances, negotiate relocation assistance for perspeetive—prospective
employees in a lewer-grade classification below Grade 28.

reasonable-insurancefor household goodscharges:
(Res. 2013-95. Passed 9-17-13. Res. 2022-XX. Passed 9-XX-22. Ref. Personnel Policy

300.05)



ATTACHMENT B TO STAFF SUMMARY

300.05 RELOCATION ASSISTANCE

Hsthe poliey-oftheThe Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority te-will provide equitable
reimbursement of relocation expenses to newly hired management and professional employees
hired from outside the Greater Cleveland area.

To be eligible for relocation assistance, a new employee must meet the guidelines established
by the Internal Revenue Service for the deduction of moving expenses on annual income taxes.
Applicable taxes will be deducted from the employee’s wages for any reimbursement made by
the Authority that are not entitled to deduction based on the Internal Revenue Service Code.
The position for the new employee must be at least Grade 28 or above under the Authority’s job
classification system in order to qualify for relocation expense payment.

The CEO/General Manager, Chief Executive Officer may, in special circumstances, negotiate
relocation assistance for perspective-prospective employees in a lewer-grade classification_
below Grade 28.

The Authority will pay for moving the new employee’s household goods to a new residence in
the Greater Cleveland area within a radius of 50 miles of downtown Cleveland, including
packaging and crating expense, all transportation charges and reasonable insurance for
household goods charges. (Ref. Code Book Section 642.09)




RESOLUTION NO. 2022-92

AMENDING SECTION 642.09 RELOCATION ASSISTANCE QF THE CODIFIED
RULES AND REGULATIONS OF THE GREATER CLEVELAND REGIONAL
TRANSIT AUTHORITY AND SECTION 300.05 RELOCATION ASSISTANCE OF
THE PERSONNEL POLICIES

WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolution No, 1989-176, the Board of Trustees of the
Authority codified the resolutions establishing its policies and procedures; and

WHEREAS, a policy related to relocation assistance for newly hired employees was
established pursuant Ohio Revised Code Sections 306,31, 306.34 and 306.35 and Article IV
Sections 1, 3 and 7 Article VI, and Article 1X, Sections 1, 4 and 7 of the Bylaws of the
Authority; and

WHEREAS, the Authority has conducted a review and determined that Section
642.09 Relocation Assistance, as well as Personnel Policy Section 300.05 Relocation
Assistance should be amended.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE iT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regicnal Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That Section 642.09 Relocation Assistance of the Codified Rules and
Regulations of the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority is hereby amended to read
as specified in Attachment A hereto.

Section 2. That Section 300.05 of the Personnel Policies is hereby amended to read
as specified in Attachment B hereto,

Section 3. That the Board of Trustees hereby waives the fourteen-day period provided
for in Articte XI, Section 2 of the Bylaws.

Section 4. That this resclution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Attachment: A. Code Book Section 642.09
B. Personnel Policy Section 300.05

Adopted: September 20, 2022

President

Aftest:

Secretary-Treasurer



ATTACHMENT A TO RESOLUTION

642.09 RELOCATION ASSISTANCE.

(a} The Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority will provide egquitable
reimbursement of relocation expenses to newly hired management and
professional employees (Grade 28 or above) hired from outside the Greater
Cleveland area.

(b) The General Manager, Chief Executive Officer may, in special
circumstances, negotiate relocation assistance for prospective emplovees in a grade
classification below Grade 28.

(Res. 2013-95. Passed 9-17-13, Res. 2022-XX. Passed 9-XX-22. Ref, Personnel Policy
300.05)



ATTACHMENT B TO RESOLUTION

300.05 RELOCATION ASSISTANCE

The Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority will provide equitable reimbursement of
relocation expenses to newly hired management and professional employees hired from outside
the Greater Cleveland area.

To be eligible for relocation assistance, a new employee must meet the guidelines established
by the Internal Revenue Service for the deduction of moving expenses on annual income taxes.
Applicable taxes will he deducted from the employee’s wages for any reimbursement made by
the Authority that are not entitled to deduction based on the Internal Revenue Service Code.
The position for the new employee must be at least Grade 28 or above under the Authority's job
classification system in order to qualify for relocation expanse payment.

The General Manager, Chief Executive Officer may, in special circumstances, negotiate
relocation assistance for prospective employees in a grade classification below Grade 28.

The Authority will pay for moving the new employee's household goods to a new residence in
the Greater Cleveland area within a radius of 50 miles of downtown Cleveland, including
packaging and crating expense, all transportation charges and reasonable insurance for
household goods charges. (Ref. Code Book Section 642.09)



Form 100- Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
8%512 - STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS
TITLE/DESCRIPTION: Resolution No.:

2022-93

REMOVING SECTIONS 628.05 HOUSING ALLOWANCE, 642.05 | Date:
EMPLOYMENT AT WILL, 642.06 EMPLOYEE SELECTION, 642.07 | September 15, 2022

EMPLOYMENT OF RELATIVES AND 642.08 EMPLOYMENT

ELIGIBILITY VERIFICATION FROM THE CODIFIED RULES AND initiator:
REGULATIONS OF THE GREATER CLEVELAND REGIONAL Human‘Resaurces

TRANSIT AUTHORITY AS DUPLICATES OF THE PERSONNEL
POLICIES

ACTION REQUEST:

(2 Approval 11 Review/Comment [ information Only [ Other

1.0

2.0

3.0
4.0

5.0

6.0

7.0

8.0

9.0

PURPOSE/SCOPE: This resolution will remove Sections 628.05 Housing Allowance,
6542.05 Employment at Will, 642.06 Employee Selection, 642.07 Employment of
Relatives and 642.08 Employment Eligibility Verification from the Codified Rules and
Regutations ("Code”) of the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority (GCRTA).

DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION: The Policies and Procedures of the Board of Trustees
were codified in 19289, pursuant to Resolution 1989-176. The Code Book is now
undergaing a comprehensive review and update so that the Code will conform to the
current structure and operations of the Authority,

Human Resources provisions are located in three places: (1) the Code Book, which
provides the broad, overarching guidance for the Authority enacted by the Board of
Trustees; (2} the Parsonnel Policies, which govern day-to-day operations and are
approved by the Board of Trustees and (3) the Personnel Procedures, which contain
detaited procedures established by GCRTA management that do not require approval by
the Board of Trustees. The proposed amendment will remove the sections listed above
from the Code Book because they are duplicates of Personnel Policies 400.17, 300.01,
300.02, 300.03 and 300.04.

PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: Does not apply.
AFFIRMATIVE ACTION/DBE BACKGROUNLD: Does not apply.

POLICY IMPACT: Adoption of the resolution will remove the duplication of provisions in
the Code Book and the Personnel Policies.

ECONOMIC IMPACT: Does not apply.

ALTERNATIVES: Not adopting this resolution. Not adopting this resolution would leave
duplicate provisions in both the Code Book and the Personne! Policies,

RECOMMENDATION: This resolution was discussed at the September 13, 2022
Committee of the Whole meeting and recommended for consideration by the full Board
of Trustees. It is recommended that this resolution be adopted.

ATTACHMENTS; A. Red-line of proposed removal of Section 628.05 from the Code
Book. B. Red-line of proposed removal of sections 642.05, 642,06, 642.07, 642.08 from
the Code Book.




Staff Summary and Comments 2022-93
Code Book
Page 2

Recommended and certified as appropriate to the availability of funds, legal
form and conformance with the Procurement requirements.

A e,

‘General Manager, Chief Executive Officer




ATTACHMENT A TO STAFF SUMMARY




ATTACHMENT A TO STAFF SUMMARY




RESOLUTION NO. 2022-93

REMOVING SECTIONS 628.05 HOUSING ALLOWANCE, 642.05
EMPLOYMENT AT WILL, 642.06 EMPLOYEE SELECTION, 642.07
EMPLOYMENT OF RELATIVES AND 642.08 EMPLOYMENT ELIGIBILITY
VERIFICATION, FROM THE CODIFIED RULES AND REGULATIONS OF THE
GREATER CLEVELAND REGIONAL TRANSIT AUTHORITY AS DUPLICATES
OF THE PERSONNEL POLICIES

WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolution No. 1889-176, the Board of Trustees of the Authority
codified the resolutions establishing its policies and procedures; and

WHEREAS, the Authority has conducted a review and determined that Sections
628.05 Mousing Allowance, 642,05 Employment at Will, 642.06 Employee Selection, 642.07
Employment of Relatives and 642.08 Employment Eligibility Verification, should be removed
from the Autharity’s Cadified Rules and Regulations as duplicates of Personnel Policies
400.17, 300.01, 300.02, 300.03 and 300.04.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Sectian 1. That Sections 628.05 Housing Allowance, 642.05 Employment at Will, 642.06
Employee Selection, 642.07 Employment of Relatives and 642,08 Employment Eligibility
Verification are hereby removed from the Codified Rules and Regulations at the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority.

Section 2. That Personnel Policies 400.17 Housing Allowance, 300.01 Employment at
Will, 300.02 Employee Selaction, 300.03 Employment of Relatives and 300.04 Employment
Eligibility Verification, will remain unchanged.

Section 3. That the Board of Trustees hereby waives the fourteen-day period provided
for in Article XI, Section 2 of the Bylaws.

Section 4. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: September 20, 2022
President

Altest:

Secretary-Treasurar



o7 aded Heday anussay

SPA} USBMIFE UORRAEISSERISAL B 03 anp Hsalpy Gik .

SHHAIGE %ITE TEFEEETY ¢ BILIGFERT & DOETRCTEZ §  mAKEOT xEC SEE'FLI 5 RECIEEL 5 EG¥MBE'EL % GEHE T9EINES - AT HEWD TVESL
HITIE WETL RS EL’S I S0 055 v pxio] i%ra's] (L] BSE"VET HIEETT HEWD 30 5305 BIH10 ONY SANZINISHNENITY IL04ENS
%000 - - - 5 - 5 =NE - - 5 - 4 - ARTNZEUNHNITY B JISETI0AM - SR QRA0D
ST6EL - TIFESTTR - 5 TEVERTTE  § =00 g - 3 4 THHIG2S
=000 . legrarspa) EEEE) S I - 5 WO0D 5 S RS I3
D - - - 5 - 5 ®O0G - ¥ - i Lo 534y TrdIns4
K550 Twal g 1ZErwrsLl EETRAET 5 TRLEER'T S NSPE Tea'aE s GEL'sT 5 SEEOIL S1EEFE SN0IMTIIICIN
RI0D {ee9BLt HE=CE | 2T 4 GeE'sE 3 WTn - £ra' H - 3 BLETOK AIMEESIESY TNILTHISD TdI3 s
KETD IREE 55 {orEiiared BSEETEL 5 TITHE 5 HoTg IMEThE] e T B STB'TST 5 RETWE THILKI TWI0T 31915 "¥WH3a34) IINTNILNIYIY A1 LM IATYE
KI0'G 1xes el HE | SEETHT %« 9BTSE % NOon - far ER 5 EQT'T AHERERIN 20T A1YLS TTWHI0IS] LNIVETSENEIEEE ENTEE
HERT oy as S5 D&3795E S 9TET § ORElD BeLsErl Gt 5 BSS'ES E k] SONM=3E 34 AN O S OX AN

HERD A0 S3INNOS EFHIG Y SINIPE R EEY

50T HOE'LEL LGS T SEYSOE'E T SEE'T HERD HEIE tEL'T BES'ERE ETE'TOR IrINANTY W3HA0 TRLDLANS
o PR [ STETOE 3 BLITET 4 RiZY [%55TE) [FIETH] 5 iDL s T5YIS AL
LT - TESGLE LTBS 5 SACES % HIENM - 51255 5 ies't 5 OELEL BACII LSTHI 2 HE
HADY %26°12] [CRE e FE6'T 5 DATSIE S W&l [HEETF) [055°6T) 5 EAF:E 5 EDATT AMTIMI T LY
AT HATLE F2E COLYLTT 3 GIEET 3 %Y - - 5 - 5 - SHOISSSAIID 5533 SLHDIY SlIvay i
=07 - EET'EST ESATSS 5 SISTIE:E 5 BITO [248E'aT) ls5ea1) 3 1% 45 SOLES SROSEHMLIINS OIS 1IN0 ORIE LYAA DY
FFINFATE WEHLG
IS *9sf POEYETET 5T STLBST £pIZ56" DT WAL TG WhEr SITIAY BIRYESTE T0ped' T S2IGISANS EIHIE0 TYLOLEGS
=08'T9 A58 YOEIETET GEB'STLET  §  EPTUSEYAT § %ALTS HPE'E SITZRY T S T TOL'PO0'ET i 35N B SFINS
FIOEENS SNUVETda
%5mg ®SK LT LT EX+'IRS'ET TSTFERST EELE] {5%659T) {EETIES SOETOEE SIS'ESS'T STUVA YITNISERE w0105
®aTT wIS'ET ApeITY H e ¥ S LETETE 3 WD [EEE {ats0r) [ rETEIE % SEDM4T SMILEHIIL 380N
LD - TERTENT 956 4 GIETT - ) 1% 16t JDSETET) 5 COsTRE 5 Oree 55%d-41
=2ro {0t l555753] FA A 3] 4 EDe'EEs 5 =0bD - E5TH 5 IE5OT 5 TEL'bE SOYWDEEY S LIS - D5we
5851 IS GRISTE GIFBIG'E S BTL'EST¥ 5 =S WOLET Eidse 5 ERLOME % ILEOSH 531%5 13401 55w
HEET SEIET LSESES S EIROLES R ¥4 B K 3 wEdh eI SEA'TET 5 SSE'EIR L] T ] H 5344 Hsw
E3UYT EEONT v
TwA0Ld0 % ISNTHIE NI, ;TN [:}T TI0L40% ISNVHIS AXHTHYA B Hanan HINOW
FETERT ) 1208 TIET JEEHE N A el 1radand

TZ0Z "1£ 1SN0 GNY ET0T 'TE LSNBNY G3HENT GOMSS IHL B0S
OBt T9HEINID - WY 0add D T3HTdINOD JIAISITB HEVD S0 LY Dd3H
AUBOHLINY USNTEL TWNGHDIH QNOIZATID B31v385 FHL




Tio T e Uatag anganay

SPURY UZAMIM] QGIIENFEESE|I5E € OF anD Waunstipy QL .

SO T wAEY SPRFPETT 5 ODGZALTLT 4 PSEEESASE §  wO0DOI [E5] [aze'stat %  EGEGEEEL 5 TICSRSTT 4 Oard TUEENZT - Q313034 HSWD TWL0L
HIETE %OT'E ZESTLT $IABES A EEE'GLE' MR w50 (9 wbl [asa'aLEl POE'TEX CEa0r HEWD £ SEIHAGS HIHED ORY SENINISHREVELE TWLOERNS
k) - - - - L0 - - - - ANZHISNIEITE B2 NITLS 0N - JHI00 100

HIGET RITE e TEFEST TR £EE'5EL'TR oo - - - B UL L ENES
oo - - - - WD - - - - FYSYE a0
HOO'g - - *oo - - - - o0 SART W33
wWstg - 95T 1940 E 030gEE w5r HEEQT LA T 84 LT LSS SADANTTIEOEN
Hiog - ELETGE ELA'Db - HETY - arEr SLFD% - THYLSHESY ANILHIE0 13034
HETD {5507y RERCET) EITFPE aEaEs %HOTY (b6 L6 [age'soot I LOADAT FHIUNWE TeDa Fivas WHAGT S S0RWNILNINYE 201MIAIHd
HIOG ixaiogl TLrIr - SRCSE O H#E0 - 1 EGT'T B THOLYSY TR0 AI%LS "IWEINT] LNIWSSENSIMIZY tvds
HEHD ozl IR LRE] 0K THET CEHAQEL'T HET [H#AT55] 194 1°5¢] Sty £0000T SOMMNIZY KoL I JOH4IONNEN
SV S0 STIRA0T 310 GNY S LNTPESERaEE
PRPOZ PUBH - LRI 7742 =a1exd||y Z77
KA1 RLTET ArELS TRE'SPET EEU LT HEET [#EELE] {868 E1T) E2EINE IZZ'VEE NI WAHA G TYLOLaS
5400 [ETEE [fEy4TH ELL26T DIEOrS HIZQ [HTE L] [T TEOTS C32'0aT YIHIG
sita %10z {EET'5E 0L FEE DALITY HIED FLETT ihia 31 OZE! £oa'ce AN LSTHI T
%A [3%E50E) larg'bel £2T'5TE DHOTE HAFQ [z 2L [Fen A FIEIE £00"CaT A0 THLNSY
HITD [308IF) (ra A BZ&"IST £69°%5b %RIFD - [LEce=31 - TIL'sE SNOISSIAINGD S5T2 S1HDIE DRIVYH
g IrT'ECET FTSER'T ook %II0 - GOLTRE BICES 400'5T SROISSEAL S OISSIINO D ONS LLEAN
HANGAEFr I
SHIB T SEE LBEEREDT EET'256'(5T 951'GER"5T %4716 wh £19"ES B0 b BPYESE'TE SRIHSANTS SIS0 YA L8y
EATRE] el IBETET QT ErL'E55'EST ST 0TA ST =a0Ta SFED £L9°T5 T HIT BIN'ESS'TT W ZEM B SFIVS
RIAAEEAT DI IVETd0
] WISt BLILEE'T ST 'REY'ST ZLB'BLEE HEND [EXTRET LO6"SLE] SETESSE TEVSTE'T STUVS EIDNASSTL 10101905
%eI'T e et [EEETH] LFEEET'E STEE2EE a0 {eraa6} RG] 5 TAEFGLE SHILENILL INBGH
SELG - 0TI oTetIoT B0 %00 {HEVEST EEELT) 30T ac0'ant 5%
=a ] - £OE'5Y TOE9ES LO0'TG Ok KEGGE 16l eT T6L"5 oS SOMEDIEYS I HSANLS - G50
%55T [T lsgarzis] BILEET Y LSEPTA'Y %05'T ixyare) ERTER OB TS 0aE'oes 53795 LFADLLIS5
WEEE ST ET Lransey £ EReDEe 5 OOSE'S 3 HEUPR HERUE TRTGET 5 THUSeS % oooacy % 34y HSWD
SIUT oNI d
TPA0LI0 K ATNTHIN 3N 1A, kA L3O0HE Tk TIOL 0% ADNVHDIE IRITIHTA HiNgw HLNOIWE
TN Fraird I ENINEND MUt 1oana

TTOT "EE FSN9NY 030N O0iH3Ed 3HL BOS
THNd TWHINAD - 1390016 01 OFEVHINDT QIAMIEY HEYD 40 LHOd Iy
ALBOHIAY USKTHE TWNOIDIE ONYIZATTD HI1VTE0 3HL




WHSP wal e S80°LL3BRLE | BIB'GIE'0ALS
WEFE HO5R CPIZSELALE 1 AEL'0IS (GRS
gL WEES ZPELVE'SPLS } BTLICE'SEE
hiB 4 SHEDAL TETZ0L'EELS | SIT'SLOFLES
TaEE 8 SeEL 0L BETETED LGS | CLE'SEL'EES
HEEE BEOEL [ ErA A GO IZF'GLE
o 1eEa ) %ESEL ZZE TIE FES Z0BO0E"85S
HiB 8 WALEL LBL'EPS'0rS EZ6ETT L8
Salad: RELETL LGLFRS'OES G953 088°P S
FONVEGTA  IDNYHD TWIEDY EFR [T
1S3 % A % AlAkE0E GlA GiA
ZZ0E SNSH3A TTOT Z220Z ZZ02

GEE'EBYBLLE
BEF'SLLFSLS
TOT'TH: TS
TOS'OZF' LS
SLO'ZLE 163
ZHE'EPE'TLS
1= AR~
EQ ES¥'OES
FELGIGELE
T LY

Eia
R A: T4

N6LE0E'35LS
LE6BFS'GELS
BOB L i0'6ELE
821'ESYG0LE
ALE'DZLERS
CLAECP LS
SCP'Ti87 LGS
PEE'ECLDES
FPELROE'BLE
FAIEOY

Qla
0T

{0457k (el 5]
A ST
WIS WEL L
Wiy %069
A 9% LES
HGE L W50k

WTDEE %A 5L
Sli L wELE

Rl WREF T

ENCTTIEE] AFNVHD

ATHING 12062 % HINOW
SNSHIAA VALY L1202

ATHINOWN SASHIA
120z Zzoz

890' LIS BRLE

FNRUMSS ZZ0Z eyl sayBuy (801 'SFH'ES %69 Y
BNy 1202 el Jsubi (L96'8L6'3 18 %840

ala

B 2207 DGWadas uey ool {g/R'068° L5 %S/
|eRiay (207 SS0LR30aS UBY) Jamd| {750 SETLS) %L

050986 TP

EPE'ELLOES
L0 r00'ZES
C5L'SPE'ZES
FIP'RL9ZES
TRS'BAL'BLS
SZFBLP'RIS
W LZE'ETS
FENBSGBLS
IS TRA'DES

THALSY
SE0T

HE'REST0ZS
LIEVSTOES
PEEOEEL2ZS
iT'SLE IS
PEU'EES' LTS
¥LE'181'LTE
GFE'BED LTS
LOG'608 LLE
IOG'TE AL
B4R L0 TS
FSR'LFE'BLE

BIG IS ELS

FAVNWILE3
LIoT

£E0E HAAWIL4IS HONOBHL SE4IESTY TWNLOY
SAXVL ISN ANV STATVS
ALHOHLOY LISNYHL TVNOIDEY ONY13A3TD Y31Y3dD

B LIFE'BCTS

SELTER DI
CEY'BEE0EY
S oET'LES
SEEEIE' 2L
BIGETS LTS
L85 50L CIS
PRIFIELEYE
AELESGE 1S
ZYEIELHES
LB POOIES
20EZSE LS
PELOLE RS

TILLOY
A1k

puoyy

Aewiwng

FOr'2ENETS ILOE
SEH'ZAZ'BLE HEL TS e
SHC'EE0' LS HAAWZAON
LeZ'nlg'els HIFOLI0
ESR'ESY'ELE HIBMIAIT
BEL'PES'LLE LSNEmy
BER'FAC'ELE Kng
FELCER'SLE B
ZOL'ESE'S LS A
SSE'eY'OLE Tewdy
LLPBIELES HOEYA
FEEOSTELY A EERd
PLAROE'S LS AHYOINYT

LIV [ETSERER
HZOT HENON



EB'SCS

BYO9ES
(S 98%
BF'5a%
Zo'ls

26°805'v1E
05 TrL'BeS
4L L60'7ig

———— s

0L LBG FLS

009:1'653
B2 LOL'PEES
LE'0ZL'ELS
EFAFAS
S80LSE
80°3LLS
B8 LEF 893
£€5'289°¢3

FE'BLLCES
81 /BG'BLS
iB'966'8%

L6066 8%

£ jo | abeg

J1¥0 OF H¥3A iT02
3193 OL YV3A 2202
ZE0E ESNOnY

JL¥0 OL Y¥aA 1202
JL¥A OL YY3A Z20E
ZEOE LSNSOY

JL¥A 0L "v¥3A LE0Z
J1¥3a 0L ¥YIA 2202
Ze0Zg LSNony

iV OL Uv3A LE0T
31v0 0L 8¥3A 2202
20z Lsnony

¢202 LSNOonNV

HHOWYLS
LRACOOY d33/MS MNYE A3
QNN ENIINITHOANT My

OIHCHY LS
GOlNA IONYUNSN

ANNGIOY dIIMS HNYE A INNOTOY INYHOHAN
INNOJOY AQOLSND Shd

LNAOODY d33ME HMNYE AIM

CIHOYYiS

INNODOY XV.L STTVS-NOLONILNNH

ONAd TVUINID

13MEVIN ASNCIN NCLONILNMH
QNN INSNZHILTE GNOg

{SISVE HSVD) SONINYYI LNIWLSIANI NO L1HOd3N
ALHOHLINY LISNYY! TYNOIDIY GNY1TAI D HILVYIHD



A
BC'986°LES
LBPEETLLE

I8%8
00°08L'018
RO DoRS

L0688
£9'G8
G908
LI

LV L10%

698028

62°/8€'CS
LA0%
BG'95E°ZS

GL'BES 168
g1'592'8858
SL'BTT L4%
SLEvS
00681 22L%

£ io g abeg

3190 Q1 4v3A LE0E
JE9d OL HY3A 2202
CZOT ASNONY

IV O HY3A L2OE
LW 04 VYA 2202

FAATAR RN L

J1¥0 O "4 1202
JLV3 04 UV¥3A Z20E
£20Z LSNony

J1Y0 OL 4v3A E202
A1V OL ¥v3A 2202
ZC0E 1LSnonyY

¢2he 1snNony

{SISVE HSYO) SONINYYI INIWLSIANI NO LHOd3H
ALIHCHINY LISNVHL TYNOIDTY ANVYI1IAT IS HILYIND

LNACDDY d33MS HNYE ATH
gH4

YN

QNN TW1idVO Y-

L9 ATNOIN MNYE AT
ANACDOV ALIAILOY 33A01dINE

LNAOODV d33MMS MNYE AT
OHOUYLS
ONH NOISN3d

ANNCOTY S3IMS MNVE AT
HO1¥YW TY3O0T0OIHOYY LS
OGN HOLYIN TY3 0T



%501

¢ Jo ¢ abed

wiTe

LOE'LPS'EZES

185'SBL'28
665'6C88
{PSS'cTIE)

tI8'6LY'1S
ZEYE CL
HY3A T20T

6.6'L09°05E8

£51'656/%
8656883
{so¢'z6ws}

$98' 0¥
isnonv

¥i'08£'s088
8L TLS'BLYLS
L6'£98" L0S

0L¥LZ'0L1E
£9'8LETSYS
9y LI8L'6Li%
EEDES

€L°LLL'BLLS

2LY0 OL HYIA LZ20T
21y 0L Uv3A 2202
2408 1snony

A1vd OL WUY3A 1202
3V QL Y34 ZE02
£20T 1SNoNy

ZZ0Z LSNONY

SLNIWESIANI NG T131A OVEIAY

{1S0D) AoNYIVE LNINISIAN] IOVHIAY

-GINYY3 IWOIN] 15383 LN

GNIONZ
-DMENNED3E
ASFHIINI Q3NHO0Y

(S19va HSVD) 3A30TY 1SIHT LN

SUMNE TV IVi0L

INNOJIV d33MS MNVE ASH
QIHOHYLS
QN IAH3ISIY

(SISVE HSVD) SONINYYI INSWLSIANI NO LHOL3Y
ALIMOHLOY LISNYHL TYNOIDIYE GNVTIIATTIO HALYIHD



i TA A
G0
CGE 0
%S0
%00+
WE4E
WEE'E
%O0E
G002
%BLL
Wbl e

Gi b
%60E
WEEC

%e0ZT

%REED
YeB0E

RS

RGETD
WLl
E AT
%EE0
Wh0E
%ESE
eSH T
SEEE
WEPE
SEET
SROCE
p A
BE 0
SRi0
W lS0
WeZ 0
S5%L0

YTl L

Srlt
aizia

S6P'50ES 609 59 9L LS
1 o% SAE 10LS L
N o CEG {61 L
1 0% 19Z'5E6S L
£a0L a0a'55e 000'000'63S GO
telor SRAELE BLO'SRI'PS 692
520% §45°15% 0a0'000'S1E S60:
86 Si8CES DL /E6'B8 £EO:
0Z8 5L Fe SZEIBA'FPE 0501
08E BOLALS SELPYE'ES el
I o G¥0'EE0'ER% L
PLiCoLs
L a3 FBE'PES L
l o% ALEGLIS !
03 gL Teetit
L i3 £58'0C% !
L o BC8'LOT' 23 L
FrSTREES L3160 POLS
L o3 9z’ LIT RS L
L a5 6EC'BS 4
L 0% SBSFEES b
L o% bSO 'PLS L
L 0% 1BS'CL2'ErS L
£+ Z6S5LY a00°'60G'ss [Rees
w07 PERELY LSFSES e BBE
£204 SORBFS 98779198 canl
ELE SLE'ECS SGYREE TS £81
SEB 851GEE Q08°GOCSE SeOL
Y55 06,758 o0o'COCES 580l
648 o0s 2% oOoCO'EsS g0l
£64 LE8 LS SRLFEE'RE GBOL
o08 S0E'iES B0SSE6' S G501
8BSl GiE /g J0C'000'ES SH01
e IpEes QOSAB6'PS  GBOL
o% 18¥'86% L
04 PIFPIL DML
! of it rILOLS L
ALIHAOLYIA LSIHZINI IWAINEd  SAYO
ISVETAY OLSAVG Q3andlov iDL Waz

FOVHIAY

Zio | abeg

HNYR ASM
HNYE AT
J33MEHNYE ASM
SMYTOIM 13418
SE1LNIES 4010HH
SMYTOJIK 13418
SNVICOIM 14ils
STV IOTHN 34118
ST IO2I 3418
HHO 30 317is

OiHC 20 31v1s
A4JIMEHNYE ATH

HMYE AT
GIHO 30 31¥1S

A ATM
HNYE NOLDNILNMH
HHWE Shd
HNYE AT
GIHC 40 31v1s
SILHNRDIIE 011K
S3HYADEs do1 I
SMY 02N 133118
SILIHNT3S 401 TNIH
SN 03 12418
SMWIODIN 7341
Sy 0T J3418
S OTHN T3HLS
S EOTI 134118
SNVIOGH 133418
SNYTIO T32US
HNTE AT

HeYE NOEDHNEENNH
MOILNLILSN]

HOd ATM-NISYE HOIYD

HIOZ-ENYHD

233 AZH-HOIYIE T D01

gHS

J0 MNYEONYT H3Ava

g97TH4
DETHSL

B344

gHd

QIHO YY1LS-HI LI w300

CHHO HYLS

ANIWSTHOINT AT

HIZ ASH
OIHG dvls

HIF A3H

LNNOO0Y ¥l SIS
LANMQIOY AQOLSND Shd
QMO ALIMA DY 3340743

OIHC YvYls
M4
N
H1HA

S7 HMNYEANY T H3AYE

|IHZ
gIH£
142
344
AHMSYIHL SN
IIH
93034

LHAWIN ATH-EDDV AINVHDEIN

LEMEHYIN AN O
ANSRNH SN

ZT0Z ‘LT LSNONY 40 SY

SININISIANI AUNSYIYHL 40 AUOLNIANI

FAA A BLS
FAALTA RIS
ZE0L/ LG
SEQEgLR
EZ0TIrESr
GZOTILEM
GEQZIELg
SE0Z/GLE
FEOZEEa
CEGEILR

A ALY
ZTOTS LG

ZEOEILG
CEOZILG

ZEOLLIE
TZOLLIE
TEOTILIG
CTOBILIE
£E0L/LIE
VEGLRBESZ
ELOQEFELIS
SE0ZfLED
CEQTELRE)
SEOEELIS
SZOZ/TTiY
STOE/LENE
AAL AL
prANA= A
LFAN A
FZoZie
ZEGLILIB

CEQZILE
3ivad

ALIHCHLINY LISNVHL TYNOIDIY ANV ISAT D ¥IALYIHD

CE0ZI1Em
eZ0ENEm
CZOLILER
[t nrat e oty =)
FATA T AT
TEDE/ZSD
LEOLIVESS
ZeQ2vHE
ECOTIGET
CE0ZBENL

ONAS ALY TeD0T TvLOL

QRN H3LWIA TW30%

QNN AINIWIDHOINT MY T IVLOL

[ALIEAE A
[LANAER

CTOEfLER
ZZ0TFLER

[AAVEA RN
ZZOErl e
AL AR
CEOESLE8
AV AR R
ZE0Erag8
FAAvAREAT
ZEDELLEIG
ZE0EMETIT
CEOEERIS
COMEELlF
T2
LT
LEOTSLALL
ErA AL
(FderA 1N
ZE0ErL LR

QWM LMENITE04M3 MYT
TN IONVHASNI TVLGL

GMAd JTMTHNSN

ONAS TYHINTS TVLOL

OWNZE TYHINSD

TN INSNSHILLSY GNO8 TYLOL

ECOEfLER
VD

ALIENLYIN ISVYHIHAL

QMg LNIMIHIESY OMNOE

dNnd



%l e

%EET
%802
%HEE0
WOy'e
YGL'E
Wll'E
%0G'E
WGE'E
%WiL'E
WHES'T
YO0
WSl

I

FoY R

YEL'D
iSO
HEFQ
Yl )
HGBL
%S5E
SE0

YaB6')

YWED'E
%5ED

TI3h ALRANAYIN LS3H3IUING
IDVHIAY CL SAVO OINHI0Y

i0E

£EE
L63
SET
206k
Eil
il
258
SGtr
L¥FE

055
€8y
851
weL
=T
L
£BE

3

?
El

b

FOYHIAY

665'658S  SE0'899'RLES
Z92'8614

C3

cE
EBS'G1Y
88218
SRLELE
SE9'DES
LEE LTS
6¥8'92%
L15'05%
1B ELS
BED'ES

O0E'2:%

[£43
£97'Es
i8S
BETS
985'Z18
552713
FLO'ZrS
0s

g3

0s
0g

2i0° 1550018
TEOZIrsos
S v
0a0'0e0'ss
OO0 0O0'6S
BLO'GHER'FE
CO0'0o0's%
ZL2'LZE'PS
901'EE6'PS
CO0'0G0'se
PEG'CL8'FS
COB' i ¥6'#S

(¥ FR R {2

052 '66¥%
COB'0O0'ES
oO0' 00028
O06'000'sE
GiE'GFE'LE
SIC'SPR'LE
961 ¥EB'¥E

TZ'GIVE

SPE'BLE' LS

S55'9EZ'LE
0Egzas
TV HHINIYd
pLAleER

£9E

BEL

B2
SEOL
99g

Dig
SBOE
gig

gi¢

5605
G501
560:
SE3%
¥S¥
£16
ElG
b

3
L

BAYQ
WH3E

Z jo 7 sbey

OHHO J0 3EYES
HNYE ATH
SHLIENIIS JCLTTH
SHLENIIS dCLTHH
SZRLMENIIS JOLTTHA
SNYICAIN 34i1s
SALENIIS dGETHH
S3LEENI3S dOLETHH
ST TOOHN 13-ELS
SHLMHNIZS JOLTHH
SELENIES J0LHH

SV TGN 134608
SNYI0AIM 134ES
SO0 T34ILS
EMYICTIN 134115
SAVI0DIM 14148
SNVICOIN 134548
S31HENIIS dOLTHH
ANYE ATH

HHO 20 3LVES
HNYE ATM

NCLNLEESH

OIHO yvis
HO3 A3
g4
g4
o3 HWNYEONY H3AvE
g71H4
g2 SKILYN
dJ ANYBONY] HIAvE
g
AE0ON AHNSYIHE 8N
JEON AHNSYIHLE 8N

L E|
B4
g73Hd
gTH4
g3H4
g4
JLON ABNSYIEE 5N
HO3A AT

OHG 8vls
HJ33 A3

LMIWAHLEN]

ZZ0Z ‘1€ LSNONY 40 SV
SLINIWISIANI AHNSYIYL 40 ASBOLNIANI

ZE0LELB
ZEOES L8
vZ)Z/8e/E
LE0L/aTss
EEDC Ll
SEOZIOES
[XANAE AR
EE0ELLIT
GE0ZivLiE
EZOL/OEM &
EE0EOESy

PEGLPE
PEGEIGH
FZOZICES
ELAVEALS T
FEOLIBEE
LA
FEDTICES
CEOES L6

0TI LG
ZEOTILIG

JLva

ALBEALYIN ISVYHDHENG

ALIHOHLNY LISNVHL TYNCIDTIY GNYTIATTO ¥ILVYIHD

EZOC/LESS
CEDLILET
LEOL/0EE
CEDZINESE
EEOZTIBESL
220210813
ZEDZNHESS
LZILESS
LE0LIr LY
CEOZIELE

AV AL

LEOTRE
ety
LEQE/OERS
LEDZ/SEm
EZ0ZIBEE
EE0ZSEE
PAVTATAL
CITILESs

LEDZHESg
[ALIFAER S

Jiva

SAMOd TV TWLOL

O SAHTISTE TVLOL

ONOd 2AH3ISTE

O TVLIGVYD Yid TYLOL

AN TeLIdYD YL

GNAd NOISNIS TYi0L

dMMS HOISK3d
QNN



BOR'FEZFL

PLERLE'DLS

jUowalfiey puog

noa0s'ese' i ] 00°0SE PO 0L | 00000 SES'ES Q0gCe'sel 1y g0 RsE's9L s | gons DO'OSE'ESL LS OOOOnasy AbS
GOO0S L5571 A0ASLSIE' L Ooooo'Go0' L 00554 CO0G61'S4E COG 00aSLSEE 00°000'080° 1L
CC0SZ 001 O0SES LGRS oo Co0'SEL'L O0'STEZ0E Y'5Z9'20Z oo J0'SEYENE OO OooD'SoE's
CO'OSLZBY ¢ O0'SLES00 P DG oY aES's 00'GFE 08y COsit'any coC 00'GFE"08F 00'000'55E'51
CVOGE'BER s O0Sit' 285 E OO GOO'SES'L O0SLF fFL OO GiriFL CoC A0SLF IPL OCOD0'GsS'S
OSTERE'S ODGEZEEHE'R GO COISRED O0'SZL S DEHGEL LS GO 00'seE G OC00C'SsE
TTOE EEQZILT L TZOTHICE ZZOEIHEL CEQESLa TI0TILIY ZZOZILIS FCOTILEE
ewannbhay | guswannbay Bigeieg jaigedzg Auswaimbay jageieg Bygehieg Bumpuesing
139 12101 ANAIBS IGAC} jediolintg 1salaqu) 231835 198 jediauig FSalan 1edivuitg |e104

2202 "LE 1SN9NY 40 SY
SNLVLS ONY 3IN03HDS I0IAU3S 1830
ALIHOHINY LISNYYE1 T¥YNOISIY ONVIEAT IO H31VIHD

palnbay apisy 185 AGIUom

(zZ0Z 10} opISY 198) SouBjEg WaLND

CE0E g
LT0T 908G
SZOE e
GZ0Z weg
ZTOT 80
gjeg
Auniey
[ees 4

spuog jejo]
#3d XBL $3|BS-F 07 $8188
‘A9Y X} SS[BG-OLOT SBUS
W3 ¥E] 53|EQ-GLIT S8LST

ASH XE| S3[eG-yy T S2UlS

‘nSY XE] SS|ES-FLOT seueg
spuog



0t
884

b
ALGNEIYIN
FOYHIAY

%0Z g
%aisE
%850
SSED
%We0'C
w5e0
HYED
J131A
FOVHIAY

%00°001
oS LE
%8¥ G
%Il'E
%L0°05
EDD
Y%ELT
TYLOL

4C 1N30H3d

0Ty LiV'BIES
QO3 0¥LZrLS
000'o00'ses
ZEE ISV Lig
Irl108's81 8
AB'8ELS
BFEO8G'0LS
INNDIY
3ovd

Ge0'09g'gLes
B TBE LS
IR AT S
ZLEZLEFLLS
ZrlL09BELE
i18'81L%

BEG'COS'0LS
IVdIONIMG

ZZOZ 'LE LSNONY SY

OF04L80d INSNISIANE 40 NOILISCdWNOD

O1|0JHO g JusLASsaAY| [ejo L
SSHHA0SS JUAWLISADD STy
adeg Biossuiuog
WRoooYy slex dpadn sbuuleg
Qg Jesg
WUNCITY doams ¥ueg Asy
JURCOoY Jeepy Aauo
JUSLNLGSL]



TRESD W¥FED
%5Z0 %¥a 0 WEEG LAO'BOC'ES
%lO'D %610 Sad¥' EEG'BES
FASH %8070 FATAL F A
Seil G %500 %80 BSE'EES
At 500 %ELD ZLEors
P %5040 %510 FLI'LES
LAY %S00 %G9 869'0ES
ISR %S00 %80 80E'1L5%
L 200 A BES'ZES
YelO'0 %00 %020 BEO'LES
%100 %800 %ZZ 0 ZZELES
%00 WELR YalZ0 i
Yl0m %elE 0 WrED FraSses
# 053LA #0T3HA O3A (8 T E
IIHUYI  JuYONYLIS 3DVaIAY  LSIHIIN

L20¢

Zri'ges'vRlS

vy 'BHT 29TS
ZE4'bER'segs
EBL'BIR'ELES
SBL'9TE'TLIEE
LELOSE'ERTE
BB0'BRLBBES
BLEOTLuTE
B4B'IBE 15T
0460899228
296°L0LEEES
L42'BLS T FES
£54°GiR'ApES
JONYIVE
ITVEIAY

%rL SFld
AN HEE
WBOET HE0T
%9LL Yerod
%l A
%050 %880
%0L0 LD
%010 pTANY
%100 %5E0
%00 YLD
# O730A #OTIHA
LIMHYIN JuEvYONY1S

PIaA ABG  pund Asuopy Ainseal] S sienba peid 1aWew &

“SHE ANSEa)E YU § o] SpIB1k JUaeanba uodnoo abessne Bumow ¢

GuE0" L

WOT'E
%WBOE
Wre'L
%S0T
WBSO
WEFD
%HGE0
WD
QT34
FOVHIAY
ZZ0Z

TZOZT 1L LSNONV HONOUHL 31¥3a OL YY3A
IONVINHOIHId LNIWLSIAN] 40 ANYINNNS

ALIHOHLINY LISNVYL TYNOIDIY ONVIIATTO HIivIyo

X3ANI (430NN ¥IA0 STTIIA TOVHIAY VIY

BES'CHL'ZS

£51'58/%
EZE'BPSS
498'95¢%
990'eges
BOS'601E
PBE"¥IE
1
5E'283
J3NyY3
LETHILNE

LOE 'L FE'EZE

846'789'05¢%
BER'9SHBSES
£31'6i6'8588
BFY'S0S'9FES
P08 J08'862%
059'515'992%
952°04F'008%
ZEG PP O8TS
AgRvIva
ISYHIAY

J19d 0L Uv3A

H38W3I=0

H3HWEACM

H3EL130

HIBWIid3s

Lsnony

AHW

Ealta

AW

Hydy

H IRl

AHYNTHED S

AEVIINYT
HINGW



"UDEELLIGIU [EUDIHDPE 304
DB-0ZOT "ON UOANDEAY SSAVENIL U0 PIROR PUE HT0 BN RS- SMILISIUIEERY "MA0d [andi1] AMuduiny Hsuzl) (eusiiay pueiasa)y Jziealg a1 Ja sulRday pue SRR PAYIPOT BY1 50 058 JAdeyy 01 333 Bses|g

TTOL L2 3B P18p ASUUIA 10848 Y 01 UEludd AIOSIpY JEISHOISTILIWGT ST BIYG
B0-TINT JeQWmy BB UoISSILAUOT SDIRET Oy
GEOT 9 AW PRIEP {s)1ey3y (2837 - D0} PUojsn Sug) AISUS 03 VORI AIaSIADY JJEIS MOISSHULIGY $3133 BIND
EYTE0-dN-E00T JROWNR oI BRG] UDISSHLLIOT $218E3 GI4G
13) FuE BRSO TOT SUCHS BPOD PASIARY CID
e U chuoD UF 20 O] SEnpram ajgesndde Joy pagaId BUis 5 UORBUAIGHE Sip;

3RON
adpaH |and g SLIBH NG
12115185y putg LDgBLe §FOL MTN 30 JUeg
SISTUEERAL-CIYT B 1S
JEAIBPLTE
WAy 4BE SFES PUE JUBURIEY PUCH Jueg uazdunung
LENGIDY MDJI53 PAIY] YiH2
P12 WERID PUS UMDY [BIPGISN BT Ded
Sad3as urUed Urepy HUBS Aoy
disusitefal o anies UDINLIIS L (BB fueg

TEOZ ‘1€ 3sn3ny Jo sy
SOIYSUONELRY JRIDURLYY PuE Supueg
Apuoyiny Wsues) PUoEaY pUEENa[) JatEaln



